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BOARD'S REPORT

Tothe Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 60th Annual
Report of your company Narmada Gelatfines Limited (the
Company) along with the audited financial statements for the
financialyearended 31st March, 2021.
Financial Highlights (Xlacs)
2020-21 2019-20
Revenue from Operations 13.485.39 13.425.00
Other Income 550.70 565.83

Total Income 14,036.09 13,980.83
Total expenses 12,895.59 12,196.96
Profit before tax 1,140.50 1,783.87
Tax Expense 294.72 495.86
Profit after taxation 845.78 1,288.01
Other Comprehensive Income:

Re-measurements of net

defined benefit plans (1.09) 2.84
Net Profit for the year 844.69 1290.85

Operating Performance

During the year under review, your company recorded a
turnover of ¥134.85 crores as compared to 134.25 crores in the
previous year and Profit after tax at 8.45 crores as compared to
212.88 crores in 2019-20. Consequently, Earnings per share got
reducedto#13.98 ascomparedto21.29in 2019-20.

Impact of Covid-19 on the performance

Due to the global outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, and
following the nation-wide lockdown by the Government of India
the raw material supply, road tfransport and supply chain services
were affected, which had an impact on the operations of the
Company. The Company has gradually resumed its operations
since then, in compliance with the guidelines issued by
respective authorities. The Company has considered the
possible effects that may impact the carrying amounts of
investments, inventories, trade receivables, advances etc. In
making the assumptions and estimates in relation to the
recoverable amounts, the Company has, interalia, considered
subsequent events, internal and external information, and
evaluated economic conditions prevailing as at the date of
approval of these financial results. The Company expects no
significant impairment to the carrying amounts of these assets
other than those accounted for. The Company will continue to
closely monitor any changes to the future economic conditions
and assess ifs impact, on the operations. Post lockdown, the
Company has taken reasonable steps to normalise the
operations and efficiencies. However, during the year the
Company remains partially affected mainly on account of
shortage and quality of major raw material.

Global economic growth is expected to fouch 5.5% in 2021 and
4.2%in 2022. Thisis 0.3 percentage points higher than the forecast
made in October 2020.

India’s GDP for the year 2020-21 is estimated to contract by 7.7%
as per the Economic survey, owing to the adverse effect of Covid
on the economy. Manufacturing and services segments are
likely to decline by 9.6% and 8.8%, respectively. On the other
hand, agriculture segment is likely to grow by 3.4%. providing
some support to the economy. However, inthe second half of the
year signs of up swings were visible due fo growth in
consumption.

Dividends

Your company is maintaining the dividend payment history and
considering the company’s financial performance for the 2020-
21,the Directors are pleased to recommmend a dividend of £10.00
per Equity Share (previous year ¥10.00 per Equity Share) for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021. The fotal outflow on
account of the proposed dividend will be $604.96 lacs (previous
year ¥604.96 lacs). The dividend on equity shares, if approved at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will be paid to Members
whose names appear in the Register of Members as on 14th
September, 2021 and to Members whose hames appear on that
date as Beneficial Owners as furnished by Natfional Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL).

Share Capital

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st
March 2021 was ¥604.96 lacs comprising 60,49,587 equity shares
of ¥10/- each. The Company has not issued shares with
differential voting rights, employee stock options and sweat
equity shares. The Company has paid listing fees for the financial
year 2021-22 to the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., where ifs
equity shares are listed.

Transferto Reserves
Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to General
Reserves forthe yearunderreview.

Quality initiatives

The Company is committed to the highest levels of quality for its
products and customer services. During the financial year 2020-
21, the Company retained its ISO certification for Quality
Management (ISO 9001:2015), EDQM Certification from
European Directorate for the Quality of Medicines and
Healthcare, DNV Management System Certification for Food
Safety Management System Standard (ISO 22000:2005), KOSHER
Certification and Halal Assurance System Certification.

Deposits from public

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from public as defined under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013. No amount on account of principal or
interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date
ofthe balance sheet.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are givenin
the notesto the Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy
of the Company and the initiatives undertaken on CSR activities
during the year are set out in Annexure-l of this report in the
format as prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Details regarding the CSR
Commifttee are covered in Corporate Governance Report,
which forms part of this report. The CSR policy is available on the
website of the company www.narmadagelatines. com.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Committee has been entfrusted with the
responsibility to assist the Board in (a) approving the Company’s
Risk Management Framework and (b) overseeing strategic,
operational, financial, liquidity, security, regulatory, legal,
environmental, human recourse, and other risks that have been
identified and assessed to ensure that there is a sound Risk
Management Policy in place to address such concerns/risks.
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The Audit Committee has exercised additional oversight in the
area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the
business and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions. The details of the Risk Management
Committee, its terms of reference, key business risks identified
and mitigation plans are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Vigil mechanism / Whistle-blower Policy in
place to encourage and facilitate employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior, actual/ suspected frauds
and violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics. The
policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimisation of
persons who avail the same and provides for direct accessto the
chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of
the Company oversees the implementation of the Whistle-
Blower Policy. The Committee affirms that no complaint has
beenreceived under the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism
and no personnel had been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

Information on Whistle-Blower Policy is available on the
Company’s website www.narmadagelatines.com and in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Reporting of Frauds

There were no instances of fraud or suspected frauds reported
during the year under review, which required the Statutory
Auditors to report o the Audit Committee and / or Board under
Section 143(12) of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint ventures or
associate companies.

Directors' Appointment and Remuneration

The policy of the Company is to have an appropriate number of
executive and independent directors on the board. The policy
of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration,
etc. asrequired under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is
available on the website (www. narmadagelatines.com) and in
the Corporate Governance Report. The remuneration paid to
the directors is as per the terms laid down in the Nomination &
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
which makes recommendation to the Board with regard to the
appointment of new Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.
This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has been
formulated in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Listing Regulations as amended from time to time.

The main objectives of the policy are:

. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard
to identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who
may be appointed in senior management and key
managerial positions.

. To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size
and financial position and trends and practices on
remuneration prevailing in peer companies and in the
industry.

. To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as
well as key managerial and senior management
personnel.

. To provide them rewards linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to
the Company’s operations.

. To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long
term sustainability of talented managerial persons and to
create competitive advantage.

Board of directors

Retirement of independent directors

Justice Gulab Gupta, erstwhile non-executive independent
director of the Company, left for heavenly abode suddenly on
7th April, 2021. Late Justice Gupta was associated with the
Company for more than a decade and the Company
immensely benefitted from his vision and leadership. The Board
of Directors of the Company express their deep condolences
and pay tribute to late Justice Gulab Gupta.

Mr. Mohan C. Pant and Mr. Deepak Chaudhari independent
directors, on completion of their tenure, shall retire as members
of the board with effect from 21st September, 2021. The Board
places on record its appreciation for their invaluable
contribution and guidance.

Appointment of Independent directors

As per Section 149 of the Act, the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on 26th May, 2021 on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee recommended to the members
for the appointment of Mr. Prakash M. Nene (DIN 00164133) and
Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy (DIN 02797916) as Non-Executive
Independent Directors of the Company w.e.f. 21st September,
2021 for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years. The Company has
received a nofice from a Member under Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013, signifying their infention to propose the
candidature of Mr. Prakash M. Nene (DIN 00164133) and Mr. K.
Krishnamoorthy (DIN 02797916) for the office of Independent
Directors of the Company.

A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for their
appointment forms a part of the notice convening the annual
generalmeetingtobe held on 21st September, 2021.

Reappointment of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and Article 115 of the Arficles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Ravindra K Raje (DIN 00112003)
retires by rotation af the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-
appointment. In the opinion of the Board of Directors Mr. Raje
possesses requisite qualifications and experience and therefore,
your Directors recommend that the proposed resolution relating
to the re-appointment of Mr. Ravindra K. Raje be passed with
requisite majority.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 26th May, 2021,
subject to approval of the shareholders in the general meeting,
re-appointed Mr. Ashok K. Kapur, as the Whole-time Director of
the Company for a period of 2 (tfwo) years with effect from Tst
June, 2021, on terms of remuneration as recommended by the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. A resolution in this
regard is set out af ltem No. 4 of the Notice of Annual General
Meeting, forMembers” approval.

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has
identified core skills, expertise and competencies of the
Directors in the context of the Company’s businesses for
effective functioning, which are detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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Atftention of Shareholders is invited o the relevant items of the
Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Notes thereto.
Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/
reappointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional
areas and names of companies in which they hold directorship
and membership/ chairmanship of committees of the Board, as
stipulated under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations are
given in the section on Corporate Governance in this Annual
Report.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Ashok K
Kapur, Whole-time Director, Mr. Mahesh Verma (Company
Secretary) - Head Finance & Secretarial and Ms. Garvita Asati,
Chief Financial Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company ason 31st March,2021.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the
Company had no pecuniary relationship or fransactions with the
Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending
meetings of the Board/Committee of the Company.

Declaration by independent directors

The Company has received necessary declarations under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, from the Independent Directors
stating that they meet the prescribed criteria forindependence.
All Independent Directors have affirmed compliance to the
code of conduct for Independent Directors as prescribed in
Schedule IV to the Companies Act,2013.

The Company has also received from them declaration to
compliance of Rule 6(1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, regarding online
registration with the ‘Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs™, for
inclusion/ renewal of their names in the data bank of
Independent Directors.

With regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the
proficiency) of the Independent Directors appointed/re-
appointed during the Financial year 2020-21, the Board of
Directors have taken on record the declarations and
confirmations submitted by the independent directors and is of
the opinion that all the Independent Directors are persons of
integrity and possess relevant expertise and experience and
their association as Directors will be of immense benefit to the
Company.

With regard to proficiency of the Independent Directors,
ascertained from the online proficiency self-assessment test
conducted by the institute, as notified under Sub-Section (1) of
Section 180 of the Act, the Board of Directors has taken on
record the declarations submitted by Independent Directors
that they are exempt from appearing in the ftest.

None of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se, in
terms of Section 2(77) of the Actincluding Rules there under.

Board Evaluation

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board
have laid down the manner in which a formal annual evaluation
of the performance of the Board, Committees, Chairman and
individual directors has to be made. The Board of Directors has
carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions
of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and the Guidance Note on
Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India.

The Board evaluated its own performance as well as the
committees performance after seeking inputs from all the
directors/members and also on the basis of criteria such as the
Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, the
performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a
whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of
executive directors and hon-executive directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis of
criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the
Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues
to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and
inputsin meetings, etc.

Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by
the entire Board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated. The manner in which the evaluation was carried out
is coveredin the Corporate Governance Report.

Board Meetings

The Board meets atf regular intervals to discuss and decide on
company'’s business policies and strategies. In case of special
and urgent business, the Board/Committee’s approval is taken
by passing resolutions through circulation, or by calling
Board/Committee meetings at a shorter notice, as permitted by
law.

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Board
meetings and Annual General Meetings. The agenda for the
Board and Committee meetings includes detailed notes on the
items to be discussed to enable the Directors to take an
informed decision.

During the financial year under review, four Board Meetings and
four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held, the
details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report.
The intervening gap between two Meetings was within the
period prescribed underthe Companies Act,2013.

For details of meetings of the Board, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report, whichis a part of this report.

Meeting of Independent Directors

As per provisions of Schedule IV o the Companies Act, 2013, the
Independent Directors are required to hold at least one meeting
in a financial year, without the attendance of Non-independent
Directors and members of management. During the financial
year 2020-21, the Independent Directors have held one
separate meeting on February 11,2021.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134(5) of the Act, the
Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability,
confirmthat:

a. in the preparation of the annual financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b.  appropriate accounting policies have been selected and
applied consistently and judgements and estimates made
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
onthatdate;
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c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d.  the annual financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis;

e. proper internal financial controls have been followed and
that such financial confrols are adequate and are
operating effectively; and

f. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws are in place and were adequate and
operating effectively.

Related Party Transactions

Al related party fransactions that were entered into during the
financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company atlarge.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties
referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form
AOC-2 are set out in the Note 36 of Notes to Financial Statements
forming part of the Annual Report. None of the Directors has any
pecuniary relationships or fransactions with the Company or vice
versa.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act read with
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from
time to time, M/s Lodha and Company, Mumbai, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration No.301051E), were appointed as
statutory auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of five
yearsi.e. from the conclusion of 56th Annual General Meeting of
the Company, till the conclusion of 61st Annual General Meeting
to be held in 2022. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its
Nofification dated 7th May 2018, has dispensed with the
requirement of ratification of Auditor’'s appointment by the
shareholders, every year. Hence, the resolution relating to
ratification of Auditor’s appointment is not included in the Notice
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Report of Statutory Auditors

The Statutory Auditors, M/s Lodha and Company, Mumbai,
Chartered Accountants, have submitted their Report on the
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2020-
21, which forms part of this Annual Report. The Notes on Financial
Statementsreferred to in the Auditors’ Report for the year2020-21
are self-explanatory. There are no observations, qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report that calll
for any explanation.

Secretarial Auditor and their report

Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay, Company Secretary, was
appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2020-21 pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report as
Annexure - Il. There are no qualifications, observations or adverse
remarks of the Secretarial Auditors in the Report issued by them
for the financial year 2020-21 which call for any explanation from
the Board of Directors.

Transfer of Unpaid and Unclaimed amounts to IEPF

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with the
IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,
2016 (‘the Rules’) as amended, all unpaid or unclaimed
dividends which were required to be fransferred by the
Company to the IEPF were transferred to IEPF Authority.

The Company has also transferred shares in respect of which
dividend amount remained unpaid/ unclaimed for a
consecutive period of seven years or more to I[EPF Authority within
stipulated time.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act,
2013, during the financial year, the declared dividends which
remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years have been
tfransferred by the Company to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government,
as detailedin the Corporate Governance Report.

The details of unpaid / unclaimed dividend and the shares
transferred to |IEPF Authority are available on the company’s
website www. narmadagelatines.com.

Significant and Material Order passed by the Regulators

There are no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status and the Company’s operationsin future.

Corporate Governance Report

The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report. The Whole-
fime Director’s declaration regarding compliance with the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors
and Management Personnel forms part of the Corporate
Governance Report. As required by the Listing Regulations the
certificate on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 issued by Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay,
Company Secretary in Practice, is annexed to this Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, detailed review of
operation, performance and future outlook of the Company is
presented under Management Discussion and Analysis Report in
aseparate section and forms part of the Annual Report.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to energy conservation, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required
to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014is annexed to this Report as Annexure - Il

Annual Return and Extract of Annual Return

As per provisions of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder, an Extract of Annual Return in the form
MGT-9 for the financial year 2020-21 has been annexed to this
report (Annexure-1V). A copy of Annual Return of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20 in the form MGT-7 has also been
placed on the website of the Company at
https://www.narmadagelatines.com.

Particulars of Employees

None of the employees of the Company is in receipt of
remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed under Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3)
of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details in
respect of directors and employees of the Company as required
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed fo this Report as
Annexure-V.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

All the employees in the Company are considered equal. There
is no discrimination between individuals at any point on the basis
of race, colour, gender, religion, origin, sexual orientation or
age. Every individual is expected to treat his/her colleagues with
respect and dignity.

The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual
harassment at workplace. This policy of the Company is in line
with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees)
are covered under this policy. An Infernal Complaints
Committee is in place to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. No complaint was received by the
Company during the financial yearended 31st March, 2021.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date
of thisreport.

Appreciation

The Directors wish to convey their deep appreciation to all the
employees, customers, vendors, investors, and consultants/
advisors of the Company for their sincere and dedicated
services as well as their collective conftribution to the
Company’sperformance.

The Directors also thank the Central and the State Governments,
statutory authorities, bankers, and business associates and all
the stakeholders for their continued interest and valued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Deepak Chaudhari
Chairman

Ashok K. Kapur
Whole-time Director

Place: Jabalpur
Date: 29th June, 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economy Overview

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused major disruptions in the global economy. Uncertainty about the post-pandemic economic
landscape and policies has discouraged investment and frade, whereas the disruption in education has potentially slowed human capital
accumulation.

The lockdowns and social distancing brought the already slowing global economy o a standstill. Global economic output is estimated to
fallby 3.5 percentin 2020 (IMF January 2021 estimates)*.
*Source : Ministry of Finance - Economic Survey 2020-21

Recovery in global growth willlargely be a function of how countries contain the pandemic and bounce back from its negative impact. To
overcome this, Governments and central banks across the world deployed a range of policy tools to support their economies such as
lowering key policy rates, quantitative easing measures, loan guarantees, cash transfers and fiscal stimulus measures.

Several countries have approved vaccines and are distributing them in a phased manner. Access to medical interventions, effectiveness
of monetary policy support, exposure to cross-country spillovers are prominent factors driving the recovery. Thus the pace of recovery will
vary. Coordinated effort is required by key economies to bring the pandemic under control. Ensuring access to vaccines at affordable
rates and adequate liquidity to weaker economiesis the need of the hour.

Inflation remained above the Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) comfort levels for a large part of the year. The government has made significant
expenditure to protect the lives of the country’s citizens as well as to revive the economy. With the world’s largest vaccination drive
currently underway in India, there is hope that the pandemic will be brought under control. Several indicators such as demand for power,
rail freight, e-way bills, GST collection, steel and cement consumption, among others are trending positively and could lead economic
recovery. Financial year 2021-22 is expected to be a better year with growth gradually coming back. A combination of monetary and fiscal
reforms and improving health of corporates could drive this recovery. Measures such as lower corporate taxes for new manufacturing units
will be the key to make India a preferred manufacturing destination in Asia. A large domestic market, improving ease of doing business,
reasonable labour costs and availability of skilled resources are other factors that could help in the drive. Thus India’s manufacturing sector
could witness sustainable recovery, going forward.

Industry Structure and Developments

The global gelatin market is currently being driven by an increasing demand for functional and convenience foods, growth in end-user
industries, rising health awareness and growth in emerging markets. Gelatin has multiple applications across various industries including
food & beverage, pharmaceutical, biomedical, personal care, and other technical areas. The food and beverage sector currently
represents the largest end-use sector followed by nutraceuticals, pharmaceuticals, cosmetics and others.

The worldwide market for Gelatin is expected to grow at a CAGR of roughly 2.8% over the next five years. However, food security concerns
and threat of vegan gelatin substitutes are some of the factors hindering the market growth. Growing regulatory issues, primarily in the food
industry and environment, are also challenges for domestic gelatin manufacturers.

Opportunities and Threats, Outlook, Risks and Concerns

Although India depends on China to meet its bulk drug requirement, steps taken by the Indian government to incentivise the production of
active pharmaceutical ingredient (APIs) and key starting materials (KSMs) under the "‘Make in India’ programme will help in reducing this
dependence. The promotion of bulk drug parks under this initiative would help India become self-sufficient in drug manufacturing, from
KSMs to generic formulations. The COVID-19 pandemic is changing the world order and power structure, compelling leaders across the
globe to revisit their business and growth strategies. With its deep expertise in the manufacture of drugs, highly skilled scientists, and low-cost
manufacturing, India definitely stands to gain from such arestructuring.

COVID-19 pandemic is expected to positively impact the growth of the empty capsules market globally. As the development of strong
immunity plays a vital role in fighting against viral infection, there has been an increasing demand for immunity boosters in the form of
natural herbs and nutraceuticals. Apart from the basic hygienic practices, proper dietary and lifestyle behaviors are essential for the
prevention and treatment of respiratory viral diseases, such as COVID-19. The COVID-19 pandemic surges the demand for nutraceuticals,
whichinturnis expectedto boost the gelatine market growth.

The lockdown has affected the purchase of our main raw material crushed bone. The slaughter houses are not functioning due to lower
exports and lower consumption of meat in the country. Difficulty in sourcing good quality raw material and rise in raw material prices
continue as an area of concern.

India continues to be categorised as "Negligible Risk" under BSE categorisation. With increasing level of awareness on environmental
hazards, the state authorities are upgrading pollution control norms regularly and the industry is now required to address the issue of
environment with more commitment. Your company continues to take all necessary steps to comply with pollution controlnorms.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance
The Company is engaged in only one segment namely manufacture and sale of gelatine and related products like ossein and di-calcium
phosphate (DCP) and as such there are no reportable segments as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments."

Internal financial controls and its adequacy

The Company’s Internal Financial Control framework is commensurate with the size and the nature of its operations. These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance about recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with
applicable statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring
compliance of Corporate Policies.
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The Company has laid down procedures and policies to guide the operations of the business. The Company has a well-defined delegation
of power with authority limits to approve revenue as well as expenditure. Functional heads are responsible to ensure compliance with the
policies and procedures laid down by the board of directors.

The Company has appointed M/s P.B. Singh & Associates, Chartered Accountants to oversee and carry out infernal audit of its activities.
The audit is based on an internal audit plan, which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditors and approved by the
audit committee. The efficacy of the internal checks and control systems are validated by internal auditors. The audit is based on afocused
andrisk based internal audit plan, which is reviewed and approved each year by the Audit Committee of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by internal auditors. Suggestions to improve any process are considered by the
management and the Audit Committee follows up on corrective actions taken by the management. The Audit Committee also meets the
Company’s statutory auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the adequacy of internal control systems and keeps the Board of
Directorsinformed of its major observations periodically.

The operating management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting as of 31st March 2021.
M/s.Lodha & Co., the Statutory Auditors of the Company audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report and have issued a
report on the internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013).

Based on its evaluation (as provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations), the Audit
Committee has concluded that as of 31st March 2021, the Internal Financial Controls were adequate and operating effectively.

Human Resources / Industrial Relations

The Company’s human resources agenda continues o remain focused on the development of its employees, building capabilities in the
organization and progressive employee relations policies. The Company addressed training and development needs of its workforce in
technical and behavioural areas by deploying internal and external faculty. During the year 2018-19 a memorandum of understanding
was reached and signed with the employees’ union for a period of five years.

The Company recognises the importance of its employees and the pride, passion and drive they possess to take the organisation to new
heights. The Company provides employees with numerous opportunities to increase their knowledge, skills and abilities and enables them
to grow in their careers. The Company successfully adds value to the employees’ talent through result driven training, while encouraging
andrewarding excellence.

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of the significant
contributions made and the continued support extended by allemployees at alllevels to the Company’s operations during the year.

Financial and operational performance

During fiscal 2020-21, the company recorded Revenue from Operations of 134.85 crore, compared to 134.25 crore in fiscal 2019-20. The
business was impacted in the first quarter of the year due to Covid-19 and the consequent lockdown which led to significant loss of
production during this period.

Material cost in fiscal 2020-21 increased by 8.5% primarily on account of material shorfage due to suppliers’ shut down and supply chain
effected due to covid-19. Employee cost was steady at 8.5% of revenue from operations. Other expenses were reduce to 5.6% (6.7% Last
year) of revenue from operations.

The company’s operating profit decrease to 8.5% (13.3% last year) toreach 11.40 crore. The operating margins declined at 4.56% as against
20.4% in the previous year. Profit After Tax (PAT) was 8.45 crore in fiscal 2020-21. Growth in PAT was 9.58%. Diluted EPS for fiscal 2020-21 was at
13.98.

The financial highlights for the year 2020-21 are as follows : (Zlacs)

2021 2020 Variance
Revenue from Operations 13.485.39 13.,425.00 60.39
Profit before tax 1,140.50 1,783.83 (643.33)
Profit after taxation 844.69 1,290.85 (446.16)

Significant changes in key financial ratios

In accordance with the Listing Regulations, the Company is required to give details of significant changes in the key financial ratios. During
the year, the significant changes in financial ratios of the Company, which are more than 25% as compared to the previous year are
summarized below:

Financial Ratio FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 Change (%) Reason for change
Operating profit margin (%) 4.55% 9.58% (52.52) Margin decreased due to
Net Profit Margin (%) 6.27% 9.59% (34.67) increase in raw material cost
Return on Net worth 6.09% 9.46% (35.50)

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report relating to the Company’s objectives, projections, outlook,
expectations, estimates and others may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results may differ from such expectations whether expressed or implied. Several factors could make significant difference to the
Company’s operations. These include raw material availability, import and exports of raw material and finished goods, economic
conditions, affecting demand and supply, government regulations, changes in taxation, natural calamities, period of lockdown and
Covid-19 over which the Company does not have any direct control.
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Annexure - [ tothe Board's Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company
The Company is focused on activities contributing to the social and economic development of the communities in which it operates andin
doing so, build a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker sections of the society and raise the country’s human development index.

During the year under review, the Company’s contributions to the community were in the areas of protection of environment, promotion of
education, livelihood, promoting health care including preventive health care, providing water, sanitation and rural development and
contributions to other social development organisations. The Company also supported and partnered with several NGOs in community
development and healthinitiatives. Some of the social activities carried out by the Company were asunder:

Environment

The Company carried out plantation of tfrees, maintenance of green belts and gardens around the manufacturing unit. Mangrove
plantation in the factory premises and surrounding areas, vermi-compost of waste and its use as manure, recycling of freated water in
cooling water system and in horticulture activities, etc. are regular activities undertaken by the Company.

The Company and its employees regularly promote and participate in projects for cleanliness of river Narmada through cleaning banks,
putting up flex, banners and wall painting messages. The company sponsored various programmes for environment protection like
Marathon ‘Run Jabalpur Run’ for environment protection, ‘Narmada Mahotsava’ and ‘Narmada Jayanti’.

The Company has done plantation in 22 acres approx. of land at three spots adjacent to river narmada at Bheraghat, Jabalpur and also
maintaining the same since last five years.

Education

Education remains as one of the focus areas of social development and the Company supports academics at all levels. The Company
provides assistance to schools such as Ekal Vidyalaya (Friends of Tribal Society). The Ekal Vidyalaya movement aims to help eradicate
illiteracy from rural and tribal India. The Company also provides scholarships to poor girls of the locality and educational support to various
poor children through contributions to various schools and other charitable institutions. The Company also aided the repairs and
maintenance of schools located in the nearby villages and provided financial help to meritorious but financially challenged students.

Community Health Care
The Company conducts regular health checks, eye check-up and blood donation camps and medical diagnostic camps. The Company
also arranged for sprinkling of medicines and insecticidesin the surrounding villages to prevent diseases and promote cleanliness.

Support towards Corona Pandemic

Company contributed to the Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situation Fund (PM CARES Fund), Indian Red Cross
Society, also supported with the distribution of masks, medicines, sanitizers in the surrounding villages and offices to protect against Covid-
19 pandemic.

Brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and areference to the
weblink fo the CSR policy and projects or programmes

The main objective of the CSR Policy is to lay down guidelines for the Company to make CSR a key business process for sustainable
development for the society. It aims at supplementing the role of the Government in enhancing welfare measures of the society based on
the immediate andlong term social and environmental consequences of their activities.

The Company shall constantly strive to ensure strong corporate culture which emphasizes on integrating CSR values with business
objective. It shall also pursue initiatives related to quality management, environment preservation and social awareness, in the areas as
detailed below:

0] Promoting health care including preventive healthcare and sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

(i Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational skills especially among children,
women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

(i) Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation
of natural resources and maintaining of soil, airand water;

(iv)  Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central Government for socio-economic
development andrelief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

(V)  Ruraldevelopment projects;
(vi) Promote and participatein projects for cleanliness of Narmadarriver;

(vii) Promote education of girl child and the underprivileged by providing academic support, assistance to schools, sponsorships for
eradicatingilliteracy;

(viii) Emphasis on regular health checks and medical aid/ health care facilities with special focus for the mother and child as well as the
old aged persons of surrounding areas and making available of safe drinking water;

(ixX) Promote and sponsor various sports activities and games organized by local gram panchayat;
(x)  Promote and supportlocalreligious and cultural programmes;
i)  Otherareas as may be notified by the Government from time to time.
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2.

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Composition of the CSR Committee:

SI.  Name of Director  Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings of Number of meetings of CSR

No. CSR Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year

1 Mr. Mohan C. Pant  Non-Executive-Independent Director (Chairman) 3 3

2 Mr. Ravindra K Roje  Non-Executive - Non Independent Director 3 2

3 Mr. Ashok K. Kapur  Whole-time Director 3 3

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of
the Company. The projects undertaken are within the broad framework of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of the
CSR policy and projects or programs undertaken by the Company are available on links: www.narmadagelatines.com.

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report). - Not applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be setoff for the
No. preceding financial years (in ¥) financial year, if any (% lac)
1 - Nil Nil

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : ¥982.96 lacs

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) : ¥19.661acs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amountrequiredto be set off for the financial year : Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation forthe financialyear (7a+7b-7c): ¥19.66lacs

(a) CSRamount spent orunspent forthe financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in3)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified under

Financial Year (in 7) Account as per section 135(6) Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

34.35 lacs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(C) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl Name of the Project Item from Local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
No. the list of area spent for Implement - Through implementing
activities in (Yes/No) the project ation - agency
schedule VI (in Tlacs) Direct
to the Act (Yes/No)
State District Name  CSR Regn. No.
1 Sponsoring of sports and
games events (vii) Yes M.P. Jabalpur 0.30 Yes -
2 Financial assistance fo
orphanage and old age homes  (iii) Yes M.P. Jabalpur 0.11 Yes -

3 Tree plantation, and
maintenance, promotion of river
cleanliness and protection (iv) Yes M.P. Jabalpur 5.14 Yes -

4 COVID support-supply of
dis-infectant and masks,

medicine etc. 0] Yes M.P. Jabalpur 2.07 Yes -
5 COVID support -
Indian Red Cross Society 0] Yes M.P. Jabalpur 1.00 No Indian Red -
Cross Society
6 COVID support -PM CARES Fund  (viii) No Pan India 20.00 No PM Cares
Fund -

7  Educational scholarship, provision
of books & educational aid to
Govt./ other schools (i) Yes M.P. Jabalpur 5.73 Yes -

Total 34.35
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Nil

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year : ¥ 34.35 lacs
(8b+8c+8d+8e)

(@) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in ¥) lacs
0] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 19.66

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 34.35

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year ((i)-(i)) 14.71

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any  Nil

V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years ((ii)-(iv)) 14.71

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount remaining
No. Financial Year transferred to in the reporting under Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), to be spent in
Unspent CSR Financial Year (in T) if any. succeeding
Account under financial
section 135 (6) years
(in %) (in %)
1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Sl. ProjectID Name of Financial Projectduration Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No. the Project Yearin amount spentonthe amountspent the project
whichthe allocated projectinthe attheend Completed/
project was forthe reporting of Financial Ongoing
commence project (in¥) Financial Year(inz)
Year (in?)
1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in

the financial year (asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : None

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset : NIL

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose hame such capital asset is registered, their address etc. : Not
Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset) : Not
Applicable

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) : Not Applicable

Mohan C. Pant Ashok K. Kapur
Chairman - CSR Committee Whole-time Director

Place: Jabalpur
Date: 29th, June, 2021
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Annexure - Il to the Board's Report

SECRETARIAL AUDITREPORT FORM No. MR-3
Forthe Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2021

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Narmada Gelatines Limited,
CARAVS, RoomNo. 28,

15, CivilLines,
Jabalpur-482001

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Narmada Gelatines Limited, (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
me areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanismin place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

Ihave examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Narmada Gelatines Limited for
the financial yearended on 31st March 2021 according to the provisions as may be applicable to the company of:

I The Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereof (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Act") and the Rules made thereunder;
IIl.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
lIl.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
V. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;
V.  Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’);
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable
during the period under review;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
amendments threreof (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Listing Regulations™);
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable during the
period underreview;
e. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits), Regulations, 2014; Not applicable during the
period underreview;
9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars o an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993; Not applicable
during the period under review as the company is not acting as a Registrar and Share Transfer Agent;
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable during the period under
review;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. Not applicable during the period under
review;
j. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, and
k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preferences Shares)
Regulation, 2013. - Not applicable to the company during the period under review.
VI.  The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 along with Food Safety and Standards Rules 2011;
VIl Pollution Control Act, Rules and Notification issued thereof;
VIIl.  Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and Rules made thereunder;
IX.  TheFactories Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder;
X, Shopsand Establishment Act, 1953;
XI.  The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Rules made thereunder;
Xll.  The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;
Xlll.  The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
XIV. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
XV. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
XVI.  The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959;
XVII. The Payment of wages Act, 1936 and other applicable Industrial and Labour Laws.

I have also examined compliance of Secretarial Standards on Board of Directors (SS-1), General Meetings (S5-2) made effective 1st July
2015 and Dividend (§S-3) made effective 1st January, 2018 (voluntary adoption by the Company) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

| further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. No Changes has taken place in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.
Adequate notice is given to all the directors o schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven daysin advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The dissenting views of the member(s) of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof were captured and minuted whenever arises.
However, no such cases has arisen during the period under review.

| further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitorand ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

It may be noted that | have conducted online verification & examination of records, as facilitated by the company (where ever required),
due to Covid-19 and subsequent measures taken by the concerned authorities, for the purpose of issuing this Report.

Sd/-
Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Practising Company Secretary
FCSNo. 2303
Certificate of Practice No. 880
PeerReview : 792/2020

Date: 29.06.2021 UDIN : F002303C000533537

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members

Narmada Gelatines Limited
CARAVS, Room No. 28

15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur-482001

My Report for the financial year ended 31"March 2021 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion
onthese secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the
contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide areasonable basis for my opinion.

Ihave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etfc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Sd/-
Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Practising Company Secretary
FCSNo.2303

Date: 29.06.2021 CPNo.880
PeerReview : 792/2020
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Annexure - lll to the Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(Section 134(3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
1. Steps taken orimpact on conservation of energy : Conservation of water
2. Steps taken or utilising alternate sources of energy : Water consumption per mt. of gelatin reduced by 25%
3. Capitalinvestment on energy conservation equipments: Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
1. Effortsin brief made towards technology absorption : Process control forimprovement of product clarity

2. Benefitsderived as aresult of above efforts : Improvement in product mix giving better realization.
3. Importedtechnology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :
(a) Technology
(b) Yearofimport
(¢) Hastechnology been fully absorbed Not applicable as no technology imported
(d) Ifnotfully absorbed, areas where thishas not taken place,
reasons thereof and future plan of action

4. Expenditure on R&D

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Recurring Expenditure : Z1.46 lacs Z11.24 lacs
Capital Expenditure: Nil Nil
Total R&D Expenditure as a % of Total Turnover: 0.01% 0.08%

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
FOB value of exports : ¥138.46 lacs % 249.61 lacs
Expenditure in Foreign Exchange :-
- Travel for Export Promotion: Nil ¥ 1.06 lacs
- Others: ¥ 9.43 lacs ¥4.81 lacs

For and on behalf of the Board

Deepak Chaudhari Ashok K. Kapur
Director Whole-time Director

29th June, 2021
Jabalpur
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Annexure - |V to the Board's Report

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
FORM No. MGT - 9

As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2021

(Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

) CIN
i)  Registration Date

i) Name of the Company

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details

vi)  Whether listed company Yes / No

vi)  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent, if any

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

L24111TMP1961PLC016023
13th January, 1961

Narmada Gelatines Limited

Company having Share Capital
CARAVS, Room No. 28,

15 Civil Lines,
Jabalpur - 482001 (M.P.)
Phone : (0761) 2830433

Yes

P-22 Bondel Road, Kolkata
Phone : (033) 40116700, 40112280
E-mail : rta@cbmsl.com

Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company:

C.B. Management Services Pvt. Ltd

Sl. No. Name and Description of main Products/

NIC Code of the Product/Service

% to total turnover of the company

Services
1 Gelatfine 20295 82.50%
2 Di-Calcium Phosphate - Poultry Feed 10802 17.10%

lll.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. Name and address of the company CIN/GLN Holding/
No. Subsidiary/ % of shares held Applicable
Associate Section

1 Alfamont (Mauritius) Ltd. Foreign Holding 75% 2(46)
Les Cascades Building, Company Company
Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis, Mauritius

2 Jumbo World Holdings Ltd. Foreign Ultimate Holding Nil 2(46)
Sea Meadow House, Company Company
Blackburne Highway (P.O.Box 116),
Road Town, Tortola,
British Virgin Islands
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
() Category-wise Shareholding:

Category of Shareholder No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of % Change
the year (01.04.2020) the year (31.03.2021) during
Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of the year
Total Total
Shares Shares

(A) Promoter
1 Indian
(a) Individuals/ HUF
(b) Central Government
(c) State Government(s)
(d) Bodies Corporate
(e) Bank/Financial Institutions
() Any Other (specify)
Sub Total (A)(1) - - - - - - - - -
2 Foreign
(a) NRIs-Individuals
(b) Other-Individuals
(c) Bodies Corporate 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 -
(d) Bank/Financial Institutions
(e) Any Ofther (specify)

Sub Total(A)(2) 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 -
Total Shareholding of Promoter
& Promoter Group (A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 4537189 - 4537189 75.00 -

(B) Public shareholding
1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds
(b) Bank/Financial Institutions
(c) Central Govt
(d) State Govt(s)
(e) Venture Capital Funds
(f) Insurance Companies 0 350 350 0.01 0 350 350 0.01 -
(Q) Foreign Institutional Investors (FIl)
(h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds
(i) Others (specify)
Sub-Total (B)(1) 0 350 350 0.01 0 350 350 0.01 0.00
2 Non-institutions
(a) Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 392339 2100 394439 6.52 372759 2100 374859 6.20 -0.32
i) Overseas
(b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital up to
Rs 1 lacs 854873 48812 903685 14.94 865018 46912 911930 15.07 0.13
i) Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess

of Rs. 1 lacs 1568438 - 158438 2.62 169118 - 169118 2.80 0.18

(c) Ofthers (specify)

i) NRI 36226 - 36226 0.60 33327 - 33327 0.55 -0.05

i) Clearing Member 798 - 798 0.01 3752 - 3752 0.06 0.05

i) IEPF 18462 - 18462 0.31 19062 - 19062 0.32 0.01

Sub-Total (B)(2) 1461136 50912 1512048 24.99 1463036 49012 1512048 24.99 -

Total Public Shareholding

(B) = (B) (1)+(B) (2) 1461136 51262 1512398 25.00 1463036 49362 1512398 25.00 -

TOTAL (A)+(B) 5998325 51262 6049587 100.00 6000225 49362 6049587 100.00 -
(C) Shares held by Custodians for

GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - - - -
Sub-Total (C) - - - - - - - - -
GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 5998325 51262 6049587 100.00 6000225 49362 6049587 100.00 -
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters:

Sl. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end % change in
No. of the year (01.04.2020 ) of the year ( 31.03.2021) shareholding
No of % of total % of shares No of % of total % of shares during
Shares shares of Pledged/ Shares shares of Pledged/ the year
Company encumbered Company encumbered
to total shares to total shares
1 Alfamont (Mauritius ) Limited 4537189 75.00 0.00 4537189 75.00 0.00 0.00
Total 4537189 75.00 0.00 4537189 75.00 0.00 0.00

(i) Change in Promoter's Shareholding:
There was no change in Promoter’s shareholding during the year.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl.  Shareholder's Name Shareholding/ Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Transaction beginning of the year during the year
Date (01.04.2020) (01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021)
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of Shares shares of
the Company the Company
1 MILLINER AGENCIES PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 247119 4,08 247119 4.08
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 247119 4.08
2 DEEPAK MADHAV TUDAVEKAR
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 47830 0.79 47830 0.79
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 47830 0.79
3 HANUMAN SHARE & STOCK BROKERS LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 35343 0.58 356343 0.58
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 35343 0.58
4 SWARAN FINANCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 33893 0.56 33893 0.56
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 33893 0.56
5 ANIRUDH DAMANI
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 20304 0.34 20304 0.34
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 20304 0.34
6 RUPESH BHUTORIA
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 20000 0.33 20000 0.33
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 20000 0.33
7 SATSAHIB SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 17682 0.29 17682 0.29
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 17682 0.29
8 RADHEY SHYAM VIG
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 16276 0.25 15276 0.25
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 15276 0.25
9 KANTA CHHAJER
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 13186 0.22 13186 0.22
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 13186 0.22
10 MAYUR MAHENDRABHAI SHAH
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 13084 0.22 13084 0.22
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 13084 0.22

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021 17



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.  Shareholder'sName Shareholding/ Shareholding atthe Cumulative Shareholding
No. Transaction beginning of the year during the year
Date (01.04.2020) (01.04.2020 to 31.03.2021)
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of Shares shares of
the Company the Company
1 ASHOK K. KAPUR
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 1050 0.02 1050 0.02
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 1050 0.02
2 DEEPAK CHAUDHURI
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 50 0.00 50 0.00
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 50 0.00
3 VARSHA RAVINDRA RAJE
RAVINDRA K. RAJE
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 750 0.01 750 0.01
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 750 0.01
4 KIRTI VERMA
MAHESH VERMA
At the beginning of the year 01-04-2020 150 0 150 0.00
At the end of the year 31-03-2021 150 0.00
V.  INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment & lacs)

Particulars

Secured loans

excluding deposits

Total indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i. Principal Amount 44,03 44.03
ii. Interest due but not paid Nil Nil
iii. Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) 44.03 44.03
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

| Addition 796.79 796.79
| Reduction (840.77) (840.77)
| Net change (43.98) (43.98)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i.  Principal Amount 0.05 0.05
ii. Interest due but not paid Nil Nil
iii. Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) 0.05 0.05

Note: Secured loans represents bank overdraft against security of fixed deposits with banks.
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VL.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Ashok K. Kapur Total (Rlacs)
No. Whole-time Director

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions of Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 40.20 40.20
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - -

Stock Option - -

Sweat Equity - -

Commission - -

IO IN

Others - -

Total (A) 40.20 40.20

Overall ceiling as per the Act 45.50*

*Being 5% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to other directors

Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Rlacs)
No.
1 Independent Directors Jt. Gulab Gupta Mohan C. Pant Deepak Chaudhari
Fees for attending board/committee meetings 0.99 0.99 0.99 2.97
Commission - - - -
Ofthers - - - -
Total (1) 0.99 0.99 0.99 297
2 Other Non-Executive Directors Ravindra K. Raje Drushti R. Desai
Fees for attending board/committee meetings 0.85 0.96 1.81
Commission - - -
Total (2) 0.85 0.96 1.81
Total (B)=(1+2) 1.84 1.95 0.99 4.78
Overall ceiling as per the Act 9.10*
* Being 1% of the net profits of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B) ¥ 44.98 lacs

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Mahesh Verma Garvita Asati Total
Company Secretary CFO (% lacs)

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions of Section 17(1) of the Income tax Act, 1961 12.90 5.06 17.96
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income tax Act, 1961 - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) Income tax Act, 1961 - - -

Stock Option - -

Sweat Equity - - -

Commission - - -

IR IN

Others - - -

Total 12.90 5.06 17.96

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
There were no penalties / punishment / compounding of offences for breach of any Section of the Companies Act against the
Company or its Directors or other Officers in default, during the year.
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Annexure - V tothe Board's Report

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER Section 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,
2014

D} The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial year

2020-21, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial
year 2020-21 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the

Company are asunder:
Sr.  Name of Director/KMP and Remuneration % increase in Ratio of Comparison of the
No. Designation of Director/KMP Remuneration remuneration of Remuneration of
for financial year in the each Director KMP against the
2020-21 Financial Year to median performance of the
 lacs) 2020-21 remuneration of Company
employees
1 Justice Gulab Gupta - Director* - - -
2 Deepak Chaudhuri - Director® - - -
3 Mohan C. Pant - Director® - - -
4 Ravindra K. Raje - Director* - - -
5 Drushti Desai - Director® - - -
6  Ashok K Kapur - Whole-time Director 40.20 Nil 16.10 Profit affer tax
decreased by 34.56%
7 Mahesh Verma - Company Secretary 12.90 (2.42) Not Applicable  in the financial
8  Garvita Asati - Chief Financial Officer 5.06 (3.80) Not Applicable Year 2020-21

*The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are only entitled to sitting fees as per the statutory provisions, the details of which are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

i) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2020-21 was ¥2.50 lacs.
i Inthefinancialyear2020-21, there was anincrease of 3.49% in the median remuneration of employees.
iv)  There were 196 permanent employees onthe rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2021.

V)  Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: The Profit affer tax for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 decreased by 34.56% and the average remuneration decreased by 1%, which is mainly on account of
retirement of higher paid employees during the year and no increments to executive staff.

vi)  Comparison of Remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel(s) against the performance of the Company: The total remuneration
of Key Managerial Personnel decreased by 0.89% whereas the Profit after tax decreased by 34.56%.

vi) @) Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company: The market capitalisation as on 31st March, 2021 was ¥9337.54 lacs, as
comparedto ¥7053.82lacs as on 31st March 2020.

b) Price Earningsratio of the Company was 11.04 as at 31st March, 2021 as compared to 5.48 as at 31st March, 2020.

c) Percentincrease in the market quotation of the shares of the company as compared to the rate at which the company came
out with the last public offer in the year: The Company had come out with initial public offer (Rights Issue) in 1994-95. An amount
of ¥1000 invested in the said Rights Issue / IPO would be worth ¥ 23152.50 as on 31st March, 2021 indicating a compounded
annual growth rate of 12.85% excluding the dividends paid out since the Rights Issue.

Vi)  Average percentage increase /(decrease) in the salaries of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel in the financial year

2020-21 was (1)% whereas the managerial remuneration for the same financial year wasincreased / (decreased) by (0.89)%.

iX)  The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the Board of Directors
based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

X) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneration in
excess of the highest paid director during the year - None of the employees are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the highest
paid director.

xi)  Theremuneration paidis as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is the implementation of best management practices, compliance of law and voluntary adherence to ethical
standards which are inevitable for achieving organisational efficiency, enhancing shareholders value and discharge of social
responsibility. The principle of good corporate governance is to ensure fairness in all transactions within and outside the company with
investors, customers, employees, partners, competitors and the society at large. Adoption of Corporate Governance and disclosure
practices attract the best of capital and talent for any organisation and create value and wealth on a sustainable and long-term basis.

Governance practices may vary but the principles are generic and universal, viz. commitment of the Board in managing business ethically
and in a transparent manner with the profit objective balanced by long term value equitably for all stakeholders. With increasing
complexitiesin business of organizations, sound governance practices are indispensable to build and sustain frust.

Good corporafte governance practices are also essential for a sustainable business model for generating long term value for the
stakeholders.

The Company is committed to run its business in a legal, ethical and transparent manner with dedication that prevails throughout the
organization. This report sets out the compliance status for the Company with the requirements of corporate governance, for the financial
year2020-21.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

MANAGEMENT
BOARD,

SUPERVISORY
BOARD AND
COMMITTEES

VisIOn VALUES AND
ETHICS

TRANSPARENCY
D

AN
ACCOUNTABILITY

OBJECTIV g

POLICIES AND
REGULATORY
MANAGEMENT STRATEGN FRAMEWORK

RISK AND
PERFORMANCE

MONITORING
AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The corporate governance structure in the Company assigns responsibilities and entrusts authority among different participants in the
organisation viz. the Board of directors, the senior management, employees, etc. Your Company has based its principles of Corporate
Governance philosophy on transparency, accountability, values and ethics, which forms an integral part of the Management’sinitiative in
its ongoing pursuit fowards achieving excellence, growth and value creation. Your Company is committed to highest standards of
Corporate Governance and disclosure practices to ensure that its affairs are managed in the best interest of all stakeholders. The company
continuously endeavours to improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis and adopts innovative approaches for leveraging
resources, converting opportunities info achievements through proper empowerment and motivation, fostering a healthy all round growth
and development to take the Company forward.

Your Company is in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). In addition to complying with the statutory
requirements, effective governance systems and practices towards improving transparency, disclosures, internal control and promotion of
ethics at work place have been institutionalized. The following codes and policies have been adopted by the Company:

Code of Conduct

Code of Internal Procedure and Conduct for insider Trading

Whistle Blower Policy

Related Party Transactions Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Sexual Harassment Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees
Board Performance Evaluation Policy

Risk Management Policy

Policy for determination of Materiality of any event
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. Policy on preservation of documents
. Anti- Corruption and Anti-Bribery policy

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the Management and directs and supervises the
performance of the Company, thereby enhancing stakeholder value. The Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuring that the rights of alll
stakeholders are protected. Your Company has an engaged and wellinformed Board with qualifications and experience in various areas.

The members of the Board are from diverse backgrounds with skills and experience in different sectors like technology, finance, legal,
power and general management. With a view fo have a more focused attention on various facets of business and for better
accountability, the Board has constituted the following committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Harassment
Committee.

The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for ensuring compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface
between the management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that
the procedures are followed and regularly reviewed and that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the
Directors and senior management for effective decision-making.

Composition of the Board

Ason 31st March, 2021, Company’s Board consists of 6 members which includes one Executive Director, three Non-Executive Independent
Directors and two Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors (including one Woman Director). The profile of Directors can be found at the
website of the company - www.narmadagelatines.com. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 and
Listing Regulations enjoining specified combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors with at least one Women Director and one
third of the Board comprising of Independent Directors as laid down for a Board with the Non-Executive Independent Director as the

Chairman.
Ly .
Category Nu.mberof %o Of iotgl number | Non Executive Executive
Directors of directors Non- Directors, 17%
Independent
Executive Directors 1 17 Directors —
(including
Non Executive Independent Directors 3 50 woman
director), 33%
Non Executive Non-Independent Directors )
. . . Non Executive
(including woman director) 2 33 Independent
Total 6 100 Directors, 50%

During the year 2020-21, there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the company.

Details of Directors attendance and other Directorships/ Committee memberships

As required by Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, none of the Director is a member of more than ten Board committees (considering
only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) or Chairman of more than five Committees across all public limited
Companies (listed or unlisted) in which he/she is a Director. None of the Director of the Company serves as Director in more than eight listed
Companies, as Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies and in case he/she is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any
listed Company, does not hold the position of Independent Directorin more than three listed Companies.

Further, all Directors have informed about their Directorships, Committee Memberships / Chairmanships including any changes in their
positions. None of the Directors of the Company are related inter-se, in terms of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013, including Rules
thereunder. The Company has notissued any convertible instruments hence, disclosure in this respect is not applicable.

Details of attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and at the last year’'s Annual General Meeting together with particulars of their
Directorship and Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees as on 31st March, 2021, are asunder:

Name of Directors Category# Attendance at Directorships and Share-
Chairmanship/Memberships of Board holding
Committeesin Indian Public Companies inthe
Board Meetings AGM Director- Committee Committee company
25.09.2020 ships* Member- Chairman- (equity share
ships* ship* of 10
Held Attended % of per share)
attend-
ance
Justice Gulab Gupta ID 4 4 100 Yes - 1 1 Nil
Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri ID 4 4 (C) 100 Yes - 1 - 50
Mr. Mohan C. Pant ID 4 4 100 Yes - 2 1 Nil
Mr. Ravindra K. Raje NI & NED 4 4 (VC) 100 No 2 2 - 750
Mr. Ashok K. Kapur ED 4 4 100 Yes 1 1 - 1050
Mrs. Drushti R. Desai NI&NED 4 4vC) 100 No 2 4 2 Nil

(VC) - attended through video conferencing facility
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Name of other listed entities where Directors of the company are Directors and the category of Directorship

Name of Director Name of listed entities in which the concerned Director is a Director Category of Directorship#
Mrs. Drushti R. Desai Kewal Kiran Clothing Limited ID
Chemfab Alkalis Limited ID

#ID: Independent Director; NI: Non-Independent Director; NED : Non-Executive Director; ED: Executive Director

*The above does not include any Alternate Directorships and Directorships of Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Private
Limited Companies. Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees of Public
Limited Companies have been considered.

Number of Board Meetings and dates
Minimum four prescheduled Board meetings are held every year (one meeting in every calendar quarter). In case of any exigency/
emergency, resolutions are also passed by circulation.

During the financial year 2020-21 the Board of Directors met four times on 29th June, 2020, 14th September, 2020, 11th November, 2020 and
11thFebruary, 2021.

The maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days, as stipulated under the
Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards, except the meeting held on 29th June, 2020 in
view of the COVID -19 outbreak vide General Circular No. 11/ 2020 dated 24th March, 2020 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), has
given one-time relaxation in the gap between two consecutive meetings of the Board to 180 days instead of 120 days as required in the
Companies Act, 2013. Due o the exceptional circumstances caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and consequent relaxations granted by
MCA and SEBI. in all Board meetings during the financial year 2020-21 Video Conferencing facility was also provided to the directors.

Necessary quorum was present in all the Board meetings.

Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors

The core skills, expertise and competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the Company’s business and

that the said skills are available with the Board Members:

D} Knowledge about the Company’s business and industry in which the company operates. Knowledge about the company’s policies,
majorrisks, threats and opportunities.

i Behavioural skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the growth of the
Company.

i)  Problemsolving,innovation skilland leadership qualities.

iv)  Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance.

V) Financial, Investment and Management skills

vi)  Technical/ Professional skills and specialized knowledge about production and process of the Company

vii)  Legal knowledge - Law including corporate, labour, industrial, taxation laws, etc.

The specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted and given in the table below:

Director Area of expertise

Company's Behavioural Leadership Sales & Board and Financial Technical & Legal

business & skills Marketing Corporate Professional

Industry Governance

Justice Gulab Gupta v v v v v
Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri v v v v v v
Mr.Mohan C. Pant v v v v v
Mr. Ravindra K. Raje v v v v v v v
Mr Ashok K. Kapur v v v v v v v v
Mrs. DrushtiR. Desai v v v v v v v

Profile of Directors

A brief profile of Director being appointed/re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of companies in
which they hold directorships, memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees and their shareholding in the Company, if any, are
provided below.

Director(s) retiring by rotation

Mr. Ravindra K Raje (DIN 00112003) is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a qualified Company
Secretary and a Bachelor of Law. He has an experience of 40 years in industry and consultancy assignments. He is presently on the Board of
GWL Properties Limited, Dandvati Investments and Trading Company Pvt. Ltd., Harshit Finlease & Investments Pvt, Ltd., Jumbo World
Holdings (India) Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Narmada Gelatines Ltd., Primo Enterprises Private Ltd., SMN Engineers
Ltd.,L’Aquila Investments Co. Pvt. Ltd., Viman Investments Pvt. Ltd., Wizer Advertising Pvt. Ltd. and Aasman Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

He holds 750 equity shares of the Company ason 31st March,2021.
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Re-appointment of Wholetime Director

Mr. Ashok K. Kapur (DIN -00126807) is a Mechanical Engineer having 50 years of experience in Gelatine industry. He is ex-Chairman of Ossein
& Gelatine Manufactures’ Association of India and Director of Gelatine Manufacturers Association of Asia Pacific and ex-Chairman Ossein
and Gelatine Panel CAPEXIL.

At present, he is also on the Board of Directors of M/s GWL Properties Limited, Jumbo World Holdings (India) Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo Electronics
Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Firestorm Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Primo Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Viman Investments Pvt. Ltd., Aasman
Management Services Pvt. Ltd. and Dandvatilnvestments and Trading Company Pvt. Ltd.

He holds 1050 equity shares of the Company as on 31st March, 2021.

Appointment of Independent Director(s)

Mr. Prakash M Nene (DIN 00164133), aged 67 years is B.E. (Hons.) Electronics, MBA from B.I.T.S. Pilani. He has a vast experience of 44 yearsin
various areas such as financial services industry, Business Planning, Venture Capital, Asset Management, Capital Markets, and Mergers &
Acquisitions.

He has managed various assignments of core finance and commercial functions such as accounting and financial control, fund raising,
direct and indirect taxation, purchase and inventory control and other efficiency improvement programmes at manufacturing
divisions/units.

He s presently a designated partner of Earth Advisors LLP and parther of Megadelta Capital Advisors LLP.

He does not hold any equity shares of the Company ason 31st March, 2021.

Mr. K Krishnamoorthy (Mr. Moorthy) - (DIN: 02797916) aged 71 years holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce (with Honours) from Calcutta
University and a Degree in Law (LLB) from Utkal University, Bhubaneswar, Odisha. He is a Company Secretary by profession. He also holds
"Certificate of Practice", CP No. being CP-9733. He has also passed the Intermediate Examination of the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India, Kolkata.

He is presently on the Board of GWL Properties Limited and MPIL Corporation Limited.

He does not hold any sharesin the company.

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings, particulars of Directors
seeking appointment / re-appointment at this AGM are givenin the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM.

Board Procedure

The Agenda and Notes on Agenda for Board Meetings are circulated to Directors in advance. All material information is incorporated
therein to facilitate meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. Where it is not practicable to attach any document o the
agenda, itis tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect in the agenda. In special and exceptional circumstances, any
other matters are discussed with the permission of the Chairman of the Board meeting.

Recording minutes of proceedings at Board and Committee meetings

The Company Secretary records the minutes of proceedings of Board and Committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to members
of the Board / Committees for their commments. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Book within 30 days from the conclusion of the
meeting.

Post-meeting follow-up mechanism
Management takes actions on the decisions and directions arising out of the discussions of the Board/ Committees Meetings. Important
decisions taken at meetings of the Board/Committees are communicated promptly to the concerned departments/ divisions.

An action taken report on decisions/minutes of the previous meeting(s) is placed at the succeeding meeting of the Board/Board
Committees forreview and follow-up.

Compliance

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s). is responsible for and is required to
ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder, as
applicable and the Secretarial Standards recommended by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the financial year 2020-21, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before
the Board for its consideration. The Board of Directors is provided with all the information and update on the subjects detailed under and
have complete access to any information within the Company.

Annual operating plans and budgets and updates

Capitalbudgets and updates

Quarterly / annual financial results of the company

Minutes of meetings of board, audit committee and other committees of the board

Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important

Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of directors, including appointment or

removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary

Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems

. Any material defaultin financial obligations to and by the company, or substantial non-payment for goods sold by the company

. Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including any judgement or order which may
have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise that can have
negative implications on the company

. Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions

. Any significant development in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of
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Voluntary Retiremnent Scheme, etc

. Sale of material nature of investments, assets, which is notin the normal course of business

. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as non-payment of dividend,
delay in share fransfers, etc.

. Quarterly compliance certificates which includes non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or listing requirements and

shareholders service

Appointment, remuneration and resignation of Directors

Proposals requiring strategic guidance and approvals of the Board of Directors

Related party transactions

Formation and reconstitution of Board Committees and theirterms of reference

Declarations by Independent Directors

Disclosures of interest of Directors and their shareholding

Appointment and fixing of remuneration of Statutory Auditors asrecommmended by the Audit Committee

Appointment of Infernal Auditors and Secretarial Auditors

Discussion on reports and observations of Infernal and Statutory Auditors

Dividend declaration

Making of loans and investment of surplus funds

Proposal formajorinvestments, merger, amalgamations

Borrowing money, giving guarantees or providing security in respect of loan

Issue of securities, shares, debentures

Independent Directors

Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Act and rules thereunder. The Independent
Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the Listing Regulations and that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that
could impair or impact their ability o discharge their duties with an objective Independent judgment and without any external influence.
The Board of Directors have taken on record the declaration and confirmation submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same.

Formal letters of appointment have been issued to the Independent Directors and the terms and conditions of their appointment are
disclosed on the company’s website at www.narmadagelatines.com.

Tenure of Independent Directors

In accordance with Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, the current tenure of all the Independent Directors of the Company is for a
term of 5 consecutive years from the date of Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 22nd September, 2016 upto the conclusion of 60th
AGMtothe Company ortill 21st September, 2021, whicheveris earlier.

Mr. Mohan C. Pant and Mr. Deepak Chaudhari independent directors, on completion of their tenure, retire as a member of the board with
effect from 21st September, 2021.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

Independent Directors of the Company met separately on 11th February, 2021 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and
members of the Management. In accordance with the Listing Regulations, following matters were, inter alia, reviewed and discussed in the
meeting, asrequired under Schedule IV to the Act (Code for Independent Directors) and Regulation 25 (3) of the Listing Regulations:

Atthe meeting, the Independent Directors:

. review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as awhole;

. assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is
necessary forthe Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction on the performance of the
non-independent directorsin the functioning of the company and on the performance of the Board as a whole.

Directors' Familiarization programme:

The Company has an orientation process/familiarization programme for its independent and other directors that includes briefing on their
role, responsibilities, duties, and obligations as a member of the Board, nature of business of the Company, plant visit, manufacturing
process, quality, safety measures in place, CSR activities etc., matters relating to Corporate Governance, Code of Business Conduct, Risk
Management, Compliance Programs, Internal Audit, etc. and infroduction to senior management team. This provides insights info the
Company to enable the Independent Directors to understand the Company’s business in depth that would facilitate their active
participationin managing the Company.

As a process, when a new independent director is appointed, a detailed Appointment Letter incorporating the role, duties and
responsibilities, remuneration and performance evaluation process, Code of Conduct and obligations on disclosures, is issued for the
acceptance of the Independent Directors.

Efforts are made to continually update the Independent Directors on all important developments within the Company and regulatory
changes viz. sharing important developments in the industry, the company’s internal environment and external environment, industrial
relations, updates on demand and supply situation for the Company’s products, etc.

Allnew directors appointed on the Board go through an orientation process/familiarization programme. At the time of appointment of an
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independent director, a formal letter of appointment is issued by the Company which contains their role, functions, duties and
responsibilities. The format of the letter of appointment is available on the company’s website (www.narmadagelatines.com). The details
of fraining and familiarization program are provided in the Corporate Governance Report and also available on the website of the
company.

Directors and Board Performance evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015,
the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of
the working of its Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and other Committees.

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board, in consultation with its Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the process, format, attributes and criteria for performance
evaluation of the entire Board of the Company, its Committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors. The framework is
monitored, reviewed and updated by the Board, in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, based on need and
new compliance requirements. Evaluation of the Board and its Committees is based on various aspects of their functioning, such as,
adequacy of the constitution and composition of the Board and its Committees, matters addressed in the meetings, processes followed at
the meeting, Board’s focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate Governance, etc., are in place. Similarly, for evaluation of individual
Director’s performance, various parameters like Director’s profile, contribution in Board and Committee meetings, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations, regulatory compliances and Governance, etc, are considered.

Further, the performance of Chairman, Executive Directors and Independent Directors are evaluated on certain additional parameters
depending upon their roles and responsibilities. Similarly, criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors include effective deployment of
knowledge and expertise, commitment to their role towards the Company and various stakeholders, high ethical standards, adherence to
applicable codes and policies, effective participation and application of objective independent judgement during meetings, etc.

Accordingly, the annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Commmittees and each Director was carried out for the financial year
2020-21 by the Board on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgement, safeguarding the
interest of the Company and its minority shareholders, etc was carried out. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was
carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted six Committees, namely Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee and Harassment Complaint Committee.
The Board is authorised to constitute additional functional Committees, from time to time, depending on business needs.

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing and
reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements.

The Committee’s purpose is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting process of the Company, the audits of the Company’s
financial statements, the appointment, independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory auditors, the performance
of internal auditors and the Company’s risk management policies. The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors
about internal control systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before
their submission to the Board. The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate any matter within the terms of reference or
referredtoit by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers all the areas mentioned under Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read
with Part C of Schedule Il to the Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter-alia, are as follows:

. Reviewing the financial reports and the disclosure of its financialinformation to ensure that the financial statements reflect a tfrue and
fair position and that sufficient and credible informationis disclosed in the reports.
. Recommending the appointment and removal of infernal and external auditors, fixation of audit fee and other payments.
. Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report, including quarterly / half yearly financialinformation.
. Reviewing with management the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board focusing primarily on:
- anychangesin accounting policies and practices;
major accounting entries based on exercise of judgment by management;
qualifications in draft audit report;
significant adjustments arising out of audit;
the going concern assumption;
compliance with accounting standards;
compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements;
approval or any subsequent modification of fransactions of the company with related parties;
reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies;
disclosure of contingent liabilities;
scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments;

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021 26



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

- valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever itis necessary;
- monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

. Reviewing with the management, and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal financial controls and risk management.

. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the audit charter, approval of the audit plan and its execution,
coverage and frequency of internal audit.

. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon.

. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity
or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter fo the Board.

. Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments to the shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

. Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

. Approval of appointment of the CFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

. Carry out such other functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors or other Committee of
Directors.

Composition and Attendance during the year
The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of the meetings attended by its members during the financial year ended
31stMarch, 2021 are asunder:

Director Category Meetings Meetings % of
held attended attendance

Justice Gulab Gupta - Chairman  Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4 100

Mr . Deepak Chaudhuri Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4 (VC) 100

Mr. Mohan C. Pant Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4 100

Mrs. Drushti R. Desai Non-Executive Director 4 4 (VC) 100

(VC) - attended through video conferencing facility

During the financial year 2020-21 Audit Committee met four times : 29th June, 2020, 14th September, 2020, 11th November, 2020 and
11th February, 2021. The gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days, except the meeting held on 29th June 2020. SEBI, vide
circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/38 dated March 19, 2020, hadrelaxed the requirement of the maximum stipulated
time gap of 120 days between two meetings of the board and Audit Committees of listed entities, as is required under Regulation
17(2) and 18(2)(a) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Necessary quorum was present at the above Meetings.

The Audit Committee Meetings are usually attended by the Whole-time Director, Chief Financial Officer and representatives of the
Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th September, 2020.

Mrs. Drushti R. Desai, Director and member of the Audit Committee possesses expert financial and accounting knowledge and is a
Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Internal Controls
The Company has a formal system of internal control which examines operational effectiveness to ensure reliability of financial and
operationalinformation and all statutory / regulatory compliances.

2.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has been constituted by the Board in compliance with the requirements of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015.

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are asunder:

. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criterialaid down, recommmend to the Board their appointment and removal.

. To carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.
. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

. To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees.

. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Director’s and Board’s performance and to carry out the evaluation of every Director’s
performance.

. Considering, approving and recommending to the Board changes in designation and increase in salary of the Directors, KMP
and other Employees.

. To carry out any other function asis mandated by the Board from time to time.
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Composition and Attendance during the year
During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met on 29th June, 2020. The Chairman of the Committee attended the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held on 25th September, 2020.

The composition of the committee and the details of meetings attended by its members during the financial year ended 31st March,
2021, are given below:

Director Category Meetings Meetings % of
held attended attendance

Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri - Chairman  Non - Executive Independent Director 1 1(VC) 100

Justice Gulab Gupta Non - Executive Independent Director 1 1 100

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje Non - Executive Director 1 1vVC) 100

(VC) - attended through video conferencing facility

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of Board of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. The Policy is available on the company’s website
(www.narmadagelatines.com).

Remuneration of Directors:

During the year under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and any of its Non-
Executive Directors apart from sitting fees, commission (if any) and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of
attending the meetings of the Company.

a) Non-Executive Directors' compensation and disclosures

The Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, are paid Sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and
Committees of the Board. The Company pays sitting fee of ¥20,000/- per meeting to the Non-Executive Directors for attending
Meetings of the Board, ¥4,000/- per meeting for attending the Audit Committee Meeting and ¥2,500/- per meeting for Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee Meeting.

Sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for 2020-21 are as detailed below:

Director's Name (Fin lacs)
Justice Gulab Gupta 0.99
Mr. Mohan C. Pant 0.99
Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri 0.99
Mr. Ravindra K. Raje 0.85
Mrs. Drushti R. Desai 0.96
Total 4.78

b) Wholetime Director and Executive Director(s)

The aggregate value of the salary and perquisites paid for the year ended 31st March, 2021 to the Whole-time Director was ¥40.20
lacs. Besides this, the Whole-time Director is entitled to gratuity and encashment of leave at the end of tenure of service. The current
agreement with the Whole-time Director is for a period of 2 years from the date of appointment and the same can be terminated by
either party by giving three months’ notice in writing.

3.  Stakeholders' Relationship Commitiee
The constitution of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee meets with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015.

The Committee specifically looks into the various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders and other security holders.

In terms of Section 178 (5) of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the terms of reference of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee are asunder:

. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares,
non-receipt of annualreport, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

o Review of measurestaken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

¢ Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. Recommend
methodsto upgrade the standard of services to investors.

¢ Monitorimplementation and compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading.

e Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory notification /
amendment or modification as may be applicable.

. Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.
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During the financial year 2020-21, the Committee met on 11th February, 2021. The Committee oversees the status of investors
grievances. During the year, one investor complaint was received by the Company, as on 31st March, 2021 there was no complaints
pending forreply.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the details of the meetings attended by its members during the
financialyearended 31st March, 2021 are asunder:

Director Category Meetings Meetings % of
held attended attendance

Mr. Mohan C. Pant - Chairman  Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1 100

Mr. Ashok K. Kapur Whole-time Director 1 1 100

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje Non-Executive Director 1 1 (vC) 100

(VC) - attended through video conferencing facility

Name and designation of Compliance Officer
Mr. Mahesh Verma, Head - Finance & Secretarialis the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of SEBI Regulations.

In orderto provide efficient services to Investors, and for speedy redressal of the complaints, the Committee has delegated the power
of approving fransmission of shares and other matters like split up / sub-division and consolidation of shares, issue of new / duplicate
certificates, consolidation and exchange, to Mr. Ashok K Kapur, Whole-time Director and Mr. Mahesh Verma, Head-Finance and
Secretarial.

4. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitiee
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required under Section 135 of the Companies
Act,2013. The terms of reference of the CSR Committee broadly comprises:

. To review the existing CSR Policy and to make it more comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specifiedin Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities.

e« To provide guidance on various CSR activities fo be undertaken by the Company and to monitor its progress.

The Board has adopted the CSR Policy as formulated and recommended by the CSR Committee. The same is displayed on the
website of the Company (www.narmadagelatines.com). The Annual Report on CSR activities for the year 2020-21 forms a part of the
Board’s Report.

During the financial year 2020-21, the CSR Committee met three times on 8th April, 2020, 29th June, 2020 and 11th November, 2020.

The composition of the CSR Committee and the details of members’ participation at the meetings of the Committee are asunder:

Director Category Meetings Meetings % of
held attended attendance

Mr. Mohan C. Pant - Chairman  Non-Executive Independent Director 3 3 100

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje Non-Executive Director 3 2(VC) 66

Mr. Ashok K. Kapur Whole-time Director 3 3 100

(VC) - attended through video conferencing facility

5. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. The Board of the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee to
frame, implement and monitor the Risk Management Plan for the Company. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the Risk
Management Plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the organisation. The Company has a robust risk
management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as also identify business opportunities.

The objectives and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises:

o Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;

o Reviewingthe Risk policy and framework in line with locallegal requirements and SEBI guidelines;

e Reviewingrisks and evaluates treatment including initiating mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-defined cycle;

o Defining framework foridentification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation and reporting of risks;

o Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks tfrends, exposure, potential impact analysis and mitigation
plan.

During the financial year 2020-21, the committee met on 11th November, 2020.
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The composition of the Risk Management Committee and the details of members’ participation at the meetings of the Committee

are asunder:
Director/Members Category Meetings Meetings % of
held attended attendance

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje-Chairman  Non-Executive Non- Independent Director 1 1(VO) 100
Mr. Ashok K. Kapur Whole-Time Director 1 1 100
Mr. Sudhir K. Shrivastava Factory Manager 1 1 100
Mr .S. Bhattacharya G.M. Operations 1 1 100
Mr.A K. Pachori HOD - Maintenance & Safety 1 1 100

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 the
Board of the Company has adopted the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics (‘the Code”). The Code is applicable to all Directors and Senior
management personnel of the Company. The Code, while laying down in detail the standards of business conduct, ethics and
governance, center’s on the following theme:

The Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel are responsible for conduct of the business, and are committed to
setting the standards of conduct contained in this Code and for updating these standards, as appropriate, to ensure their continuing
relevance, effectiveness and responsiveness to the needs of investors and all other stakeholders as also to reflect corporate, legal and
regulatory developments. The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board and management personnel and the
compliance of the same is affirmed by them annually. A copy of the Code has been put on the Company’s website
(www.narmadagelatines.com). The Code has been circulated to Directors and Management Personnel, and its compliance is affirmed
by them annually. A declaration signed by the Whole-time Director of the Company to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct forits Directors and employees of the Company is given below:

Compliance with the Code of Conduct

| Ashok K. Kapur, Whole-time Director of M/s Narmada Gelatines Limited do hereby confirm that the Company has, in respect of the
financial year ended March 31, 2021, received from the senior management team of the Company and the Members of the Board, a
declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

Ashok K. Kapur
Whole-time Director

GENERALBODY MEETINGS
Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and the Special Resolutions passed thereat are
asfollows:

AGM Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolutions

57th 2017-18 Hotel Satya Ashoka, Wednesday, None
Wright Town, 26th September, 2018
Jabalpur at 11:30 a.m.

58th 2018-19 Hotel Narmada Jacksons, Wednesday, Re-Appointment of Mr Ashok K. Kapur,
South Civil Lines, 25th September, 2019 as the Whole-time Director
Jabalpur - 482001 at 11:30 a.m.

59th 2019-20 Hotel Narmada Jacksons, Friday, None
South Civil Lines, 25th September, 2020
Jabalpur - 482001 at 11:30 a.m.

Postal Ballot

During the year ended 31st March, 2021 no resolution was passed through postal ballot. Currently, no resolution is proposed to be passed
through postal ballot. However, if required, the same shall be passed in compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Listing
Regulations or any other applicable laws.

AGM with physical presence of members

In view of Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read together with circulars
dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 permitted convening the Annual General Meeting
("AGM" / "Meeting") through Video Conferencing ("VC") or Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), without the physical presence of the
members at acommon venue. In case the company has faken or received permission from the relevant authorities to conduct the AGM at
it registered office or at any other place as provided under section 96 of the Act, after following any advisories issued from such authorities,
the company may hold such meeting with physical presence of some members. In accordance with the above mentioned MCA Circulars,
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") and with the permission of authorities, the AGM of the Company is being held
with physical presence of the members as provided under Section 96 of the Act.

Remote e-voting and ballot voting at the AGM
The company has arranged for remote e-voting facility for the shareholders to vote on the resolutions to be passed at the ensuing AGM.
Members whose names appear on the register of member as on 14th September, 2021, shall be eligible to participate in the e-voting. The
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facility for voting through ballot will also be made available at the AGM, and the members who have not casted their votes by remote e-
voting can exercise their votes at the AGM.

DISCLOSURES

Compliance with mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations during the financial year 2020-21.
Quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance, in the prescribed format, duly signed by the compliance officer is submitted
regularly with the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has formulated a Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions, in
accordance with relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. During the year, the policy was reviewed and revised
by the Board of Directorsin line with the amendmentsin Listing Regulations.

All Related Party Transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the fransaction. All transactions entered into with Related
Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arms length pricing basis and as per the
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant fransactions with related parties during the
financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Attention of the Shareholders is drawn to the disclosures of
fransactions with the related parties set out in Notes on Financial Statements, forming part of the Annual Report.

The Policy has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www.narmadagelatines.com.

Strictures and Penalties

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities. No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchanges or the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any statutory authority on any matters related to
capitalmarkets during the last three years.

Legal proceedings
There are certain pending cases related to disputes over fitle to company shares, in which Narmada Gelatines Limited has been made
party only as a proforma defendant / respondent. However, these cases are not materialin nature.

CEO & MD / CFO Certification

The CEO & WTD and the CFO have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015 certifying that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements represent a frue
and fair view of the Company’s affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company believes in conducting its affairs in a fair and fransparent manner by adopting the highest standards of professionalism,
honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. Any actual or potential violation of these principles and the Company’s Code of Conduct for
Employees would be a matter of serious concern forthe Company.

Employees have a role and responsibility in pointing out such violations. This Whistle Blower Policy is formulated to provide a secure
environment and to encourage employees of the Company to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or activities in the
Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel action against those employees who report such
practicesin good faith. The Committee affirms that no complaint has been received under the Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism and
no personnelhad been denied access to the Audit Committee.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading practices
During the year, the Company has amended the Code of Conduct for prohibition of insider tfrading and Code on fair disclosure in line with
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2020.

The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor & Report Trading in Securities of Company and for Prevention of Insider Trading, practices and
procedures for fair disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI), policy for determination of "legitimate purposes" forms part
ofthisCode, etc

The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading lays down guidelines advising the Management, staff and other connected persons,
on procedures to be followed and disclosures fo be made by them while dealing with the shares of the Company, and while handling any
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, cautioning them of the consequences of violations. The Company Secretary is responsible for
implementation of the Code.

All Directors and designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

Legal Compliance Reporting

The Board of Directors reviews in detail, on a quarterly basis, the report of compliance with respect to all laws and regulations applicable to
the Company. The Company has developed a very comprehensive Legal Compliance System. Any non-compliance is seriously taken up
by the Board, with fixation of accountability and reporting of steps taken for rectification of non-compliance.

Recommendations of Committee(s) of the Board of Directors
During the year, all recommendations of Committee(s) of the Board of Directors, which are mandatorily required, were accepted by the
Board.
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Means of Communication

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are sent to Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by
the Board. The quarterly / annual results are generally published in at least one English language national daily newspaper circulating in the
whole or substantially the whole of India (Financial Express / Hitvada) and in one regional daily newspaper circulating in Madhya Pradesh
such as, Navbharat, Dainik Bhaskar, Nai Duniya and Patrika.

The Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Directors” Report, Auditors” Report, Notice of Annual General
Meeting with explanatory notes and otherimportant annexure / information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

Annual reports, quarterly results, shareholding pattern, notices, press release, stock exchange disclosures and other important information
of the Company are also posted on the BSE website and the Company’s website www.narmadagelatines.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre')
BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like shareholding pattern,
corporate governance report, mediareleases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor compilaints are processed in a centralised web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are
Centralised database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by
investors of actions faken on the complaint and its current status.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

. Company Registration Details : The Company is registered in the State of Madhya Pradesh, India. The Corporate Identity Number
(CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L24111MP1961PLC0O16023.

. 60th Annual General Meeting : Tuesday, 21st September, 2021 at 11:30 am

. Day, Date, Time & Venue :  Hotel Narmada Jacksons, South Civil Lines, Jabalpur -482001
. Financial Year . April 1 to March 31
. Financial Calendar 2021-22

First Quarter Results . 1st August to 15th August 2021

Second Quarter Results . 1st November to 15th November, 2021

Third Quarter Results . 1st February to 15th February, 2022

Results for the quarter and
Annual Results for the year

ending on 31st March, 2022 . 15th May to 30th May 2022
. Book Closure period :15th September, 2021 to 21st September, 2021 (both days inclusive)
. Dividend payment date . Dividends as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the Annual General

Meeting, will be paid on or after 21st September, 2021 to those shareholders whose names
appear on the Company’s Register of Members on 14th September, 2021.

. Listing of Shares and other

Securities . Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai -
400001
. Stock Code . Scrip Code : Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) "526739"
Company Symbol : NARMADA GELA
. Stock Market Data . The monthly high/ low market prices of the shares during the year 2020-21 at the Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) were as under: (% per share)
Month High Price Low Price
Apr20 143.00 115.00
May’20 139.70 122.55
Jun’20 167.00 111.10
Jul’20 172.00 154.10
Aug’'20 205.50 156.20
Sep’20 208.00 165.60
Oct’20 183.90 161.55
Nov'20 173.00 147.50
Dec'20 184.35 159.60
Jan’21 174.85 150.00
Feb21 169.00 148.00
Mar'21 166.95 148.00

(Source BSE website)
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. Share price performance compared with broad based indices

BSE
Company’s Share Price As on 1.04.2020 115.30
As on 31.03.2021 154.35
Change 33.86%
BSE Sensex As on 1.04.2020 29505.33
As on 31.03.2021 49509.15
Change 67.79%
. Performance of Share price in comparison to the BSE Sensex
Stock Price Vs Sensex Movement
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. Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
C.B. Management Services Pvt. Ltd
P-22 Bondel Road Kolkata 700 019
Phone: (033) 4011 6700, 2280; Fax : (033) 4011 6739
Email : fra@cbmsl .com
. Dividend declared on equity share for the last five years
Year Rate of Dividend | ‘
2015-16 40% 100%
80%
2016-17 40% 60%
2017-18 40% 40% A A
2018-19 100% 20%
2019-20 100% o o o o' > > >
- o Q»”'N < & m&«» < & &» &Q,'»
2020-21 (Proposed) 100% v v v v v

Details of Public Funding Obtained in the last three years

The Company has not obtained any public funding in the last three years.

. Share transfer system

In tferms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, securities can be transferred only in
dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for tfransmission or transposition of securities.
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Transfers of
equity sharesin electronic form are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company.

Dematerialization of Shares - Process

With effect from April 01, 2019 SEBI has barred physical transfer of shares of listed companies and mandated fransfers only through
demat. However, investors are not barred from holding shares in physical form. We request shareholders whose shares are in physical
mode to dematerialize their shares. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized mode have been requested to register their emaiil
address, bank account details and mobile number with their depository participants. Those holding shares in physical mode have
been requested to furnish their Permanent Account Number (PAN), email address, bank account details and mobile number with
the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA), af ra@cbmsl.com. Updating all the relevant information will enable
shareholderstoreceive dividends and communications ontime.
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Forconvenience of shareholders, the process of getting the shares dematerialized is given hereunder:

a) Demataccountshould be opened with a Depository Participant (DP).

b) Shareholders should submit the Dematerialization Request Form (DRF) along with share certificatesin original, to their DP.

c) DPwillprocessthe DRF and willgenerate a Dematerialization Request Number (DRN).

d) DP will submit the DRF and original share certificates to the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA), which is C.B. Management
ServicesPvt. Ltd.

e) RTAwillprocessthe DRF and confirm orreject the request to DP/ depositories.

) Upon confirmation of request, the shareholder will get credit of the equivalent number of shares in his demat account
maintained with the DP.

Listing Fees
Annual listing fees for the year 2021-22 have been paid to the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) where the securities of the
Company are listed.

In compliance with the Listing Agreement / SEBI Guidelines:

A Practicing Company Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as mandated by SEBI, and reports on the
reconciliation of total issued and listed Capital with that of total share capital admitted / held in dematerialized form with NSDL and
CDSL and those held in physical form. This audit is carried out on quarterly basis and the report thereof is submitted to the Stock
Exchanges, where the Company’s shares are listed and is also placed before the Board.

Shareholding patftern and financial results (quarterly) and the Annual Reports (annually) are being uploaded on
www.listing.bseindia.com.

A Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Due Diligence survey, pertaining to share fransfers, fransmissions, etc. every six months
and necessary certificates to that effect are issued and the same are filed with the Stock Exchanges in compliance with Regulation
40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015.

Distribution of Shareholding
The distribution of shareholding as on 3 1st March 2021 is given below:

Range (No. of shares) Shareholders Equity Shares
Nos % to Total Nos. % to Total Shares
shareholders

Upto 500 2355 85.05 296761 4.90
501 - 1000 206 7.44 161495 2.67
1001 - 2000 99 3.57 145367 2.40
2001 - 3000 31 1.12 78750 1.30
3001 - 4000 21 0.76 71893 1.19
4001 - 5000 18 0.65 79209 1.31
5001 - 10000 21 0.76 135879 2.25
10001 and above 18 0.65 5080233 83.98
Total 2769 100.00 6049587 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares as on 31st March, 2021
99.18% of total Equity Share Capital of the Company is held in dematerialised form with NSDL & CDSL.

Physical
0.82%

Demat
99.18%

Category No. of shares %
Demat 60,00,225 99.18
Physical 49,362 0.82
Total 60,49,587 100.00
. Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2021
Category No. of shares % holding
Promoters 4537189 75.00%
NRIs 33327 0.55%
Indian Institutions 350 0.01%
Nationalised Banks 0 0.00%
Domestic Companies 378611 6.26%
Public Shareholders 1079198 17.84%
Directors / Relatives 1850 0.03%
I[EPF 19062 0.32%
Total 6049587 100.00%

PUblic Directors / IEPF
X .
Shareholders 18% Re"’""eso‘oa/"\ / 0.32%

Domestic \
Companies
6%
Nationalised
Banks 0%
NRIs
0.55%

Indian
Institutions 0.01%

Promoters 75%
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. Registered Office
‘Caravs’,RoomNo. 28
15 CivilLines, Jabalpur-482001 (M.P.)
Ph.: (0761) 2678627

. Address for Correspondence
To the Company: Narmada Gelatines Limited
28 Caravs, 15 Civil Lines
P.O.BoxNo. 91, Jabalpur - 482001

. To the Registrar & Share tfransfer Agents:
C.B. Management Services Pvt, Ltd.
P-22 Bondel Road, Kolkata-700019.
Phone: (033) 40116700, 2280 Fax: (033) 40116739
Email: ta@cbmsl.com

. Plant Location
Meerganj, Bheraghat Road,
Jabalpur, M.P.

. Transfer of Unclaimed amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund
As required under Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, all unclaimed / unpaid dividend, debenture interest as well as
principal amount of debentures as at March 31, 2020 remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date they
became due for payment, have been transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central
Government.

The Investors are advised to claim the unencashed equity dividend money for the years 2013-14 to 2019-20 lying in the unclaimed
accounts of the Company before the due dates (asindicated inthe Notes to the Notice).

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, unclaimed dividends
as detailed hereunder:

Equity Share Unclaimed Dividend 2012-13 :¥1,97,940/-

. Transfer of Equity Shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (as amended from time to time) shares on which dividend has not been paid or
claimed by a shareholder for a period of seven consecutive years or more shall be credited to the Demat Account of Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming due to be so fransferred. Upon transfer of
such shares, all benefits (like bonus, etc.), if any, accruing on such shares shall also be credited to such Demat Account and the voting
rights on such shares shall remain frozen fill the rightful owner claims the shares. Shares which are transferred to the Demat Account of
|IEPF can be claimed back by the shareholder from IEPF by following the procedure prescribed under the aforesaid rules. Therefore, it
isinthe interest of shareholders to regularly claim the dividends declared by the Company.

Consequent to the above, during the financial year 2020-21, 600 equity shares of the Company were transferred to the IEPF. Relevant
details of such sharesis available on the website of the Company www.narmadagelatines.com.

. Certificate from a Company Secretary regarding disqualification of Directors
The Secretarial Auditors of the Company Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay, have issued a certificate that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is annexed herewith as a part of thisreport.

. Certificate on Corporate Governance
Compliance certificate from Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay, Practicing Company Secretary, confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, is attached to the Directors’ Report forming part of the Annual Report.

. CEO/ CFO Certificate
The Whole-Time Director and the Chief Financial Officer provide annual certification on the financial reporting and internal controls
to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. The Whole-
Time Director and the person heading the Accounts function also give quarterly certification on the financial results while placing the
financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015. The annual certificate for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, given by the Whole-time Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company is published hereunder:
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To,

The Board of Directors
Narmada Gelatines Ltd.
Jabalpur

Sub: Compliance Certificate for the year ended 31st March, 2021 as per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

Sir,

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that,

to the best of ourknowledge and belief:

A. Thatwe have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge
and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. That,to the best of our knowledge and belief, no tfransactions were entered into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

C. That we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficienciesin the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. Thatwe haveindicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:

1. significant changesininternal control over financial reporting during the year, if any;

2. significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements; and

3. instances of significant frauds of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management
or an employee having asignificant role in the company’sinternal control system over financial reporting.

Thanking you,

Sd/- Sd/-

Ashok K. Kapur Garvita Asati
(Whole-time Director) (Chief Financial Officer)

Place : Jabalpur,
Date :29th June, 2021

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Jabalpur Deepak Chaudhari Ashok K. Kapur
Date : 29th June, 2021 Director Whole-time Director
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CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE REGARDING DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

To,

The Members of

NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED
RoomNo.28 ,CARAVS,

15, Civil Lines , Jabalpur-482001

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms returns and disclosures received from the Directors of M/s Narmada Gelatines
LIMITED having CIN - L24111TMP1961PLC016023 and having registered office at CARAVS, Room No. 28 , 15, Civil Lines , JABALPUR -482001
(hereinafter referred to as "the Company") produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance
with Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and o the best of my information and accroding to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the company and its officers, | hereby certify
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2021 has been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Companies by the SEBI, MCA or any such other Statutory Authority.

S.No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in the company
1 Ravindra Keshav Raje 00112003 28/01/2006
2 Ashok Kumar Kapur 00126807 01/06/2009
3 Mohan Chandra Pant 00257707 27/05/2006
4 Drushti Rahul Desai 00294249 22/09/2014
5 Deepak Chaudhuri 00456234 27/06/2003

Mr. Justice Gulab Gupta expired on 7th April, 2021

Ensuring the eligibilty for the appointment / continuity of every director on the Board is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company nor of the efficency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

It may be noted that | have conducted online verification & examination of records, as facilitated by the company (where ever required),
due to Covid-19 and subsequent measures taken by the concerned authorities, for the purpose of issuing this Certificate.
Sd/-
Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
Practising Company Secretary
Place : Kolkata FCS -2303 : CP - 880
Date: 08.05.2021 UDIN : F002303C000259670

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To The Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited

Ihave examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Narmada Gelatines Limited (‘the Company”) forthe year
ended on 31st March 2021, as stipulated in The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 (hereinafter collectively referred to as " Listing Regulations") ;

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to a
review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, and the representations made by the
Directors and the management, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Listing Regulations during the yearended 31st March, 2021.

| state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

It may be noted that | have conducted online verification & examination of records, as facilitated by the company (where ever required),
due to Covid-19 and subsequent measures taken by the concerned authorities, for the purpose of issuing this Certificate.

Sd/-
Dr. Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay
FCS No. 2303
CP No. 880
Peer Review : 792/2020
Date: 29th June, 2021 UDIN : F002303C000533559
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Narmada Gelatines Limited ("the Company"), which comprise of Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021, and its profit, other
comprehensive income, changes in equity andits cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in ourreport.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

Attention is drawn to note no. 45 of the financial statements regarding management’s current assessment of Company’s assets and
liabilities in view of prevailing Covid-19 pandemic and nationwide lockdown and conclusion based on such assessment that the carrying
value of the assets are recoverable and no uncertainty exists on meeting the liabilities in the foreseeable future.

Ourreportis not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other information comprises the information
included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board report, but does not include the financial statement and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work we have performed, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
financial statements that give a frue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability fo contfinue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
infends fo liquidate the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directorsis also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021 38



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

expectedtoinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intfernal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequateinternal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability fo continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftentionin
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in aggregate makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatementsin the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(@) Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books andrecords.

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows deallt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on records by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin Annexure "B".

(@) Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the
Act, asamended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company toits directors during the yearisin accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

(h)  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. Refer Note No.- 35 to the financial
statements.
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i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and protection Fund by
the company.

For LODHA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firmregistration No.-301051E

A. M. Hariharan

Mumbai Partner
29thJune, 2021 Membership No.038323

UDIN: 20138323AAAACM6330

"ANNEXURE A"

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
"NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED" FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2021

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according fo the information and explanations given fo us during the
course of our audit, we state that:

1.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property,
plant and equipment (fixed assets).

b) Allthe fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year which is considered reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. As per the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) Based on the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
title deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The Inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. The procedures of physical verification of the inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of it’s business. As per the information and explanations
giventous, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to book records.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees and security during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no deposits have been accepted by the Company
within the meaning of directives issued by RBI (Reserve Bank of India) and Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
andrules framed there under.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records
under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable
tothe Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income- tax,
goods and service tax, duty of customs, and other statutory dues applicable to the Company with appropriate authorities. No
undisputed amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the disputed dues on account of Income tax, Excise duty, Goods and Service tax, and Sales tax which have not been deposited
asat31stMarch,2021is asunder:

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Period to which Amount Forum at which it is pending
it relates (Z in Lakh)
The Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise duty 2000-03 240.88 High Court, Jabalpur
Madhya Pradesh Vat Act, 2002 Vat 2012-13 3.76 Deputy Commissioner, Jabalpur.
MP Land Revenue Code, 1959 Land Revenue Tax 2017-18 25.97 Commissioner, Jabalpur
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8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings from a bank during the year. The Company has not taken any loans and
borrowings from any financialinstitution or Government nor hasitissued any debentures during the year.

9. Based on the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not raised any money by way of term
loan or initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) during the year.

10. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across
any instance of fraud by or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of such case by the management.

11.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records of the Company, managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided for during the year is in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

13.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party fransactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. (Refer Note 36 of the financial
statements)

14.  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially convertible
debentures. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

15.  Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions prescribed
under Section 192 of the Act with directors or persons connected with them during the year.

16.  The Company is notrequired to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForLodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301051E

A.M. Hariharan
Mumbai Partner
29thJune, 2021 Membership No. 038323
UDIN: 20138323AAAACM6330

"ANNEXURE B"

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR
REPORTTO THE MEMBERS OF "NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED" FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Narmada Gelatines Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March,
2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the yearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, fo the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
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ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’sjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that tfransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements and (4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internal auditors through their internal audit
reports given to the organization from time o time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has broadly, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2021, based on the internal control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForLODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 30105 1E

A.M. Hariharan
Mumbai Partner
29th June, 2021 Membership No.038323
UDIN: 20138323AAAACM6330
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BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March, 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 2,939.27 2,559.64
Capital work-in-progress 4 - 175.86
Intangible assets 5 - -
Financial assets:
- Investments 6 5,040.18 6,281.34
- Loans 7 6.10 8.88
- Bank balances 8 970.00 87.26
- Other financial assets 9 140.10 131.18
Other non-current assets 10 0.96 6.32
Income tax assets (net) 13.21 18.69
Total Non-Current Assets 9,109.82 9,269.17
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 11 4,069.28 3.,444.38
Financial assets:
- Investments 12 - 178.45
- Trade receivables 13 1,786.65 2,014.61
- Cash and cash equivalents 14a 769.77 356.53
- Bank balances other than above 14b 460.56 530.24
- Loans 15 28.26 35.79
- Other financial assets 16 107.39 33.58
Other current assets 17 154.05 212.99
Total Current Assets 7,375.96 6,806.57
TOTAL ASSETS 16,485.78 16,075.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 18a 605.03 605.03
Ofther equity 18b 13,274.65 13,034.89
Total Equity 13,879.68 13,639.92
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 19a 678.04 672.71
Provisions 190 34.41 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 712.45 672.71
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities:
- Borrowings 20 0.05 44.03
- Trade payables 21
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro, small and
medium enterprises 45.86 19.46
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,482.14 1,275.98
micro, small and medium enterprises
- Other financial liabilities 22 61.31 85.43
Other current liabilities 23 253.30 140.54
Provisions 24 50.99 70.89
Current tax liabilities (net) - 126.78
Total Current Liabilities 1,893.65 1,763.11
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,485.78 16,075.74
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Regn. No. - 301051E
Chartered Accountants Ashok K Kapur Deepak Chaudhari
Whole-time Director Chairman

A. M. Hariharan

Partner

Membership No. 038323
Place : Jabalpur

Date : 29th June, 2021

DIN:00126807

Mahesh Verma
Head - Finance & Secretarial

DIN:00456234

Garvita Asati
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Allamounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 25 13.485.39 13.425.00
Otherincome 26 560.70 565.83
Total Income 14,036.09 13,980.83
EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials consumed 27 8,941.93 8,037.38
Changes in inventory of finished goods,
work-in-progress & stock-in-trade 28 28.77 (468.82)
Employee benefits expense 29 1,149.53 1,145.87
Finance costs 30 16.69 48.21
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 148.54 137.25
Power & Fuel 1.855.09 2,403.90
Other expenses 32 755.04 893.17
Total expenses 12,895.59 12,196.95
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,140.50 1,783.87
Exceptional ltems - -
Profit before tax 1,140.50 1,783.87
Tax Expense
- Current tax 321.01 424.45
- Deferred tax (36.98) 66.00
- Tax adjustment for earlier years 10.69 5.41
Profit after taxation 845.78 1,288.01
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 1.08 (2.84)
Total Comprehensive Income 844.70 1,290.85
Earning per Equity Share of Face Value of ¥ 10 each
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (X) 37 13.98 21.29
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Regn. No. - 301051E
Chartered Accountants
Ashok K Kapur Deepak Chaudhari
Whole-time Director Chairman

A. M. Hariharan

Partner

Membership No. 038323
Place : Jabalpur

Date : 29th June, 2021

DIN:00126807

Mahesh Verma
Head - Finance & Secretarial

DIN:00456234

Garvita Asati
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31st March, 2021

Year ended
31st March, 2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :

Net profit before tax 1,139.42 1,783.87
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 148.54 137.25
Interest income (121.20) (82.13)
Profit on redemption / fair value of investments (390.25) 415.17)
Finance costs 16.69 48.21
Loss on impairment / sale of property, plant and equipment 0.10 35.75
Sundry balances written back (net) 1.15 a11.2n
Doubtful debts recovered - (21.98)
OCI of post employment benefit (1.08) (346.05) 2.84 (306.44)
Operating profit before working capital changes 793.37 1,477.43
Adjustments for :
(Increase) /Decrease in frade and other receivables 226.81 (77.68)
Increase in inventories (624.90) (567.27)
(Increase) / Decrease in long term loans & advances 7.53 (15.84)
Decrease in loans 2.78 1.56
Increase in other current assets (14.87) (72.81)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non- current assets (3.56) 431
Increase in trade payables 232.56 71.90
Increase/(Decrease) in short term provisions 15.59 (63.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 88.64 (69.42) 45.00 (663.83)
Cash generated from operating activities 723.95 813.60
Taxes paid (410.67) (340.00)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 313.28 473.60
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 136.21
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including CWIP) (352.41) (497.05)
Purchase of Non - Current investments (2,336.31) (1,105.05)
Redemption of Non - Current investments 3.967.73 1,008.30
Proceed from the fixed deposits having maturity more than 3 months (813.06) (26.00)
Interest received 121.20 587.15 82.13 (401.46)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 587.15 (401.46)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Dividend paid including tax thereon (604.96) (727.10)
Net increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (43.98) (159.12)
Amount transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Unpaid dividend amount - 2.21)
Finance costs (16.69) (665.63) (23.28) (912.16)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (665.63) (912.16)
Net (Decrease) /Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A) + (B) + (C) 234.80 (840.02)
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 534.98 1,375.00
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 769.78 534.98
Particulars As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Cash in hand 5.56 9.27
Balance with Scheduled Banks 467.06 149.60
Deposits (with maturity of less than 3 months) 297.16 197.66
Current investments —_ 17845
TOTAL —769.78 — 53498

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For LODHA & CO.
Firm Regn. No. - 301051E
Chartered Accountants

A. M. Hariharan

Partner

Membership No. 038323
Place : Jabalpur

Date : 29th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Ashok K Kapur
Whole-time Director
DIN:00126807

Mahesh Verma

Head - Finance & Secretarial

Deepak Chaudhari
Chairman
DIN:00456234

Garvita Asati
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Allamounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 604.96 604.96
Forfeited Shares 0.07 0.07
TOTAL T 605.03 T 605.03
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Capital Securities General Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income
As at 1st April, 2019 7.51 425.37 2,200.52 9,826.70 13.94 12,473.35
Profit for the year - - - 1,288.01 - 1,288.01
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 2.84 2.84
Dividend paid - - - (729.31) - (729.31)
(including dividend distribution tax of ¥124.35 lacs)
As at 31st March, 2020 7.51 425.37 2,200.52 10,385.41 16.78 13,034.89
Profit for the year - - 129.08 845.78 - 974.86
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - (1.08) (1.08)
Dividend paid - - - (604.96) - (604.96)
General Reserves - - - (129.08) - (129.08)
As at 31st March, 2021 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 10,497.15 15.70 13,274.65
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For LODHA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Regn. No. - 301051E
Chartered Accountants Ashok K Kapur Deepak Chaudhari
Whole-time Director Chairman

A. M. Hariharan

Partner

Membership No. 038323
Place : Jabalpur

Date : 29th June, 2021

DIN:00126807

Mahesh Verma
Head - Finance & Secretarial

DIN:00456234

Garvita Asati
Chief Financial Officer
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NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
(Allamounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

1

0]

()

(iii)

@iv)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Narmada Gelatines Ltd. was set up in 1961 as Leiner Knit Gelatin Company Pvt. Ltd. The Company was converted into a Public
Company and registered as Shaw Leiner Limited in 1969. In the year 1979, the name of the Company was changed to Shaw Wallace
Gelatines Limited, and in the year 2002, the Company was renamed as Narmada Gelatines Limited. The Company is registered in
Jabalpur (Madhya Pradesh) under Registration number L2411TMP1961PLC016023. The Registered office of the Company is at 28,
CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur (M.P.). The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of Ossein and Gelatine.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Ind AS") as noftified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendments Rules, 2016 prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014.

The board of directors approved the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 and authorised for issue on June 29,
2021.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities measured at fair value. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the previous year.

Current and Non-current classification:

() The assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are based on current/ non - current classification. An asset is current when it is:

. Expectedtoberedlized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle of twelve months

. Held primarily for the purpose of frading

. Expectedto be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

(i) Aliabilityis current when:

. Expectedtobe settledin normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of frading

. Dueto be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All
otherliabilities are tfreated as non-current.

O 000

00 0Q

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with the Ind AS, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income
and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future actual results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and
the estimates are recognised in the periodsin which the results are known / materialise.

Property, Plant and Equipment (fixed assets) & Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment: The gross block of fixed assets is stated at cost of acquisition or construction (except revalued assets)
including any cost attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for theirintended use. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable o acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time till such assets are ready for the
infended use are capitalized.

Freehold land, Buildings, Plant and Machinery and Electrical Installations were revalued as at 31st March 1993 by an approved valuer
and accordingly the netreplacement cost is stated.

Intfangible assets: Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any Losses
arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost or revalued amount are
recognized inthe Statement of Profit and Loss.

At the date of fransition the company has elected to continue with the revised carrying value of its property. plant & equipments
under previous GAAP and used that asits deemed cost under Ind-AS 101.

Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation is provided on the basis of the useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipments as estimated by management and
which are inline with the useful lives prescribed under Section 123 read with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on certain Buildings acquired prior to Tst July 1986 is charged under Written Down Value method and on others under
Straight Line method.

Being a continuous plant, Depreciation on Plant and Machinery is charged based on the useful lives of the assets, as estimated by
management, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, under Straight Line method on single
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
(Allamounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

shift basis excepting certain items acquired before 1st July, 1986 on which depreciation is charged under Written Down Value
method. Depreciation on Diesel Generator setfsis charged under Straight Line method.

Depreciation on Electrical Installations and Furniture & Fixtures being charged under Straight Line method.

Depreciation on Motor Vehicles is charged under Straight Line method. Assets costing up to ¥ 5,000 each are depreciated fully in the
year of purchase.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful economic life under Straight Line method. Computer software cost is
amortised over a period of five years.

Inventories

Inventories (includes Raw Material, Work-in-Progress, Finished goods, Stores & spares, Consumables, Packing Materials) are valued at
cost or netrealisable value, whichever is lower. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost of Raw Material, Semi-finished and
Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress is determined on weighted average basis and comprises of expenditure incurred in the normal
course of business in bringing inventories to their present location including appropriate overheads apportioned on a reasonable
and consistent basis. Obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks are identified atf the time of physical verification of stocks and
where necessary, provision is made for those inventories. Adequate allowance is made for obsolete and slow moving items.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever control over distinct goods or services is tfransferred to the customer; i.e. when the
customeris able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains substantially all of the remaining benefits, provided
a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable taking into
account customer’s creditworthiness.

Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be entitled to. In determining the transaction price, the Company
considers effects of variable consideratfion, the existence of significant financing contracts, noncash consideration and
consideration payable to the customer, if any.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of the goods passes to the buyer either at the time of dispatch or
delivery or when the risk of loss transfers. Export sales are recognized based on the terms of the sale which is when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership are passed to the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is het of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customers like tfransport, packing etc. Provision is
made for returns when appropriate. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and is net of price
discounts, allowance for volume rebates and similar items.

Claims / Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable certainty are accounted for, on final settlement and are recognized as revenue
on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

Revenue recognition from sale of "Duty Entitlement Passbook License or Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS)" is made on
sale of the license after receipt of the same from the office of the Director General of Foreign Trade.

Income from Duty Drawback is recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided
thatitis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interestincome

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount oninitial recognition.

Income from Investment
Income from Investments (other than investmentsin shares of companies and Mutual Funds) is accounted on accrual basis.

Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Interest income is recognized on a
time proportionate basis faking info account the amounts invested and the rate of interest. For all financial instruments measured at
amortised cost, inferestincome is recorded using the Effective interest rate method to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted atf the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Gains and losses, if
any, on settlement or reinstatement of year end closing balances by applying the closing rates in respect of monetary assets and
monetary liabilities not covered by the forward contracts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are stated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
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The premium or discount arising at the inception of the forward contract entered into to hedge the existing asset / liability, is amortized
as expense orincome over the life of the contract. Exchange differences on such contract are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising out of cancellation or renewal of such
contract are recognized as income or expense in the reporting period. Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at the year
end on account of firm commitment / highly probable forecast tfransaction are marked to market and the losses, if any, are
recognizedin the statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored.

Employee Benefits

The Company has the following post-employment benefit plans:

i.  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity;

ii. Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund & Superannuation fund; and
ii. Other employee benefits.

(i) Defined benefit plan:
Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses, if any, are fully charged off in the year of payment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity planis the present value of defined benefit
obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-routine settlements;
and

b. Netinterest expense orincome

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of

plan assets. This costisincluded in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement comprising:

a. Re-measurement of Actuarial (gains)/losses

b. Returnonplan assets, excluding amount recognized in effect of asset ceiling
c. Re-measurement arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling

are recognised in the period in which they occur directly in Other Comprehensive Income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profit orloss in subsequent periods.

Ind AS 19, Employees benefits requires the exercise of judgment in relation to various assumptions including future pay rises, inflation
and discount rates and employee and pensioner demographics. The Company determines the assumptions in conjunction with its
actuaries, and believes these assumptions to be in line with best practice, but the application of different assumptions could have a
significant effect on the amounts reflected in the income statement, other comprehensive income and balance sheet. There may
be also inter-dependency between some of the assumptions.

(ii) Defined contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or
informal obligation to pay additional sums. Defined contribution plans comprise of contributions to provident fund, Insurance and
Employees’ Pension Scheme. The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as expenses during the
period in which the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

(iii) Other employee benefits

a. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the balance sheet
date determined based on an actuarial valuation.

b. Undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised during the period when the employee renders the related services.

c. Expensesincurredtowards voluntary retirement scheme are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

d. Otherbenefits comprising of discretionary long service awards are recognized as and when determined.

Current and Deferred tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. Current tax is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit is different from accounting profit due to temporary differences between accounting and tax treatments, and
due to items that are never taxable or tax deductible. Tax provisions are included in current liabilities. Interest and penalties on tax
liabilities are provided for in the tax charge. The Company offsets, the current tax assets and liabilities (on ayear on year basis) where it
has a legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and
liabilities on net basis. Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount in financial statements. Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
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will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are not recognised where it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realised in the
future. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Other comprehensive income or directly
inequity.

Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial asset or a group of non-
financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a cash generating unit, if any such indication
exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. An impairment loss is calculated
as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected
in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets
other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus fransaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit orloss on the basis of:

a. theentity’sbusiness model for managing the financial assets; and

b. thecontractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

() Measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held under the hold to collect business model i.e. held with an objective of
holding the assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate (EIR) method by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On
derecognition, gain orloss, if any, isrecognised to statement of profit andloss.

(i) Measured atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Afinancial assetis measured at FVOCI, if it is held under the hold to collect and sell business modeli.e. held with an objective to collect
contractual cash flows and selling such financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognised in the OCI, except for
interest income which recognised using effective interest rate method. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the OCl is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured at either amortised cost or FVOCl is measured at FVTPL. Such
financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any,
recognisedin the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments:
Allinvestmentsin equity instruments, if any classified under financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost
and at FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contfract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable and supportable including that which is
forward-looking.

The Company’s tfrade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss
allowance on frade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being
simplified approach forrecognition of impairment loss allowance.
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Undersimplified approach, the Company does not frack changesin credit risk. Rather it recognizes impairment loss allowance based
on the lifetime Expected Credit Losses at each reporting date right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of frade receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or
acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based
on 12months Expected Credit Losses.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profit and loss. For equity instruments and financial assets
measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement forimpairment testing.

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor fransferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the fransferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement.

Inthat case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability are measured ona
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes frade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit orloss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans & Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that requires a payment to be made or to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtors fails to make payment when due in accordance with the term of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative adjustments.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amountsis recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments & hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial insfruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contfract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured af fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. The
Company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign currency risk associated with the cash flows of highly probable forecast
fransactions and variable interest rate risks associated with the borrowings.
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(xiii) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most

advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset fakes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Other techniques for which allinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly
orindirectly

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics andrisks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(xiv) Provision and Contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which areliable estimate can be made.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

(xv) Leases
Asalessee:
The Company assesses whether a confract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract  conveysthe right fo control the use of anidentified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a confract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Company assesses whether:

@ thecontractinvolves the use of anidentified asset;

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and
(i) the Company hastheright to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability
for alllease arrangementsin whichitis alessee, except for leases with aterm of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation andimpairment losses.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and
lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commmencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
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generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if
the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or atermination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

Asalessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is alessor is recognised inincome on a straight-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Based on Company’s assessment, the contracts entered into by the Company do not contain alease as specified above orthey are
either shortterm orlow value leases. Therefore, those have been accounted as per other applicable accounting standards.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM).

The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments and makes strategic decisions.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity share holders (after
deducting preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changesin value where original maturity is three months or less.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is adjusted for the effect of the fransactions of anon-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company
are segregated.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalized as a part of cost of that asset, during the period fill all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for its
intended use or sale are complete. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
infended use orsale.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Exceptional ltems

When an item of income or expense within profit or loss from ordinary activity is of such size, nature orincidence that their disclosure is
relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional
items.

Recent accounting pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or asnendments to the existing standards. There is no such nofification
which would have been applicable from 1st April 2021.

MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 fo enhance the disclosures
required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These amendments are applicable to the Company for the
financial year starting 1st April, 2021,
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Particulars Freehold Buildings Plant & Furniture Office Electrical Vehicle Total
Land equipment & Fixtures Equipment Installations
Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April 2019 116.92 90.73 2,334.58 2.17 9.83 13.52 - 2,567.75
Additions - 21.15 255.80 - 1.08 22.53 8.92 309.48
Deductions/ Adjustment - - 136.21 - - - - 136.21
Balance as at 31st March 2020  116.92 111.88 2,454.17 2.17 10.91 36.05 8.92 2,741.02
Additions - 247.40 277.74 - 3.19 - - 528.33
Deductions/ Adjustment - - - - 0.34 - - 0.34
Balance as at 31st March 2021 116.92 359.28 2,731.92 2.17 13.75 36.05 8.92 3,269.01
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April 2019 - 20.66 112.05 0.77 4.29 6.95 - 144.72
Additions - 8.95 122.47 0.25 2.21 2.30 0.93 137.12
Deductions/ Adjustment - - 100.46 - - - - 100.46
Balance as at 31st March 2020 - 29.61 134.06 1.02 6.50 9.25 0.93 181.38
Additions - 12.30 129.21 0.21 2.14 3.62 1.06 148.54
Deductions/ Adjustment - - - - 0.18 - - 0.18
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 41.91 263.27 1.23 8.46 12.87 1.99 329.74
Net carrying amount
as at 31st March, 2020 116.92 82.27 2,320.12 1.15 4.40 26.80 7.99 2,559.64
as at 31st March, 2021 116.92 317.37 2,468.65 0.94 5.29 23.18 6.93 2,939.27
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
4 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Plant and equipment under installation - 46.31
Building under construction - 129.55
TOTAL - 175.86
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Computer Software)
Gross Block
Balance as at 1st April 2019 2.92
Additions -
Deductions / Adjustments -
Balance as at 31st March 2020 2.92
Additions -
Deductions / Adjustments -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 2.92
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1st April 2019 2.79
Additions 0.13
Deductions / Adjustments -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2020 2.92
Amortisation charge for the year -
Deductions / Adjustments -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31st March, 2021 2.92
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 -
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2021 -
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12

13

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

INVESTMENTS - NON - CURRENT

Investments in Mutual Funds (at NAV) - Unquoted, non trade, fully paid-up 5,040.18 6,281.34

(Refer Note 38)

TOTAL 5,040.18 6,281.34

Market Value of unquoted investments (based on Net Asset Value declared

by Mutual Fund as on 31st March 2021/2020) 5,040.18 6,281.34

LOANS

Unsecured, considered good

Advance to employees 6.10 8.88

TOTAL 6.10 8.88

BANK BALANCE - NON CURRENT

In Deposits accounts 970.00 87.26

TOTAL 970.00 87.26

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits 140.10 131.18

TOTAL 140.10 131.18

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances - 6.32

Prepayments 0.96 -

TOTAL 0.96 6.32

INVENTORIES

Raw materials 1.724.49 1.300.14

Work-in-progress 1.360.79 1,119.58

Finished goods 615.37 885.35

Stores & Spares 368.63 139.31

TOTAL 4,069.28 3,444.38

Refer Note 2(v)

INVESTMENTS - CURRENT

Investments in Mutual Funds (at NAV) -

Unquoted, non trade, fully paid-up - 178.45

(Refer Note 39)

TOTAL - 178.45

Market Value of unquoted investments (based on Net Asset Value

declared by Mutual Fund as on 31st March 2021/2020) - 178.45

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -

Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,786.65 2,014.61

Trade Receivables which have significant

increase in Credit Risk, and - -

Trade Receivables - credit impaired 2.81 5.03

Less: Allowances for expected credit loss 2.81) (5.03)

TOTAL 1,786.65 2,014.61
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14a

14b

15

16

17

18a

Particulars

As at

31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2020

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balance in current accounts

Cash in hand

Deposits accounts (maturing within 3 months)

TOTAL

BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN ABOVE
In Dividend accounts
In Deposits accounts®

TOTAL

*includes amount of Rs.548.22 lacs (previous year Rs.10 lacs)
under lien of bank towards overdraft facility and bank guarantee

LOANS
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to Employees

TOTAL

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

TOTAL

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good
Advances o suppliers

Prepayments

Balances with government authorities
Other Receviables

TOTAL

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital:

1,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each

1,00,00,000 9% cum. redeemable preference shares of 10 each.

TOTAL
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
60,49,587 equity shares of 10 each, fully paid

Forfeited shares

TOTAL

467.06
5.55
297.16

769.77

12.72
447.84

460.56

28.26

28.26

5.60
101.79

107.39

88.25
18.04
3231
156.45

154.05

1,000.00
1,000.00

2,000.00

604.96
0.07

605.03

149.60
9.27
197.66
356.53
12.69
517.55

530.24

35.79

35.79

1.70
31.88

33.58

165.09
156.91
41.99

212,99

1,000.00
1,000.00

2,000.00
604.96
0.07

605.03
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18b

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting period:

2020-21 2019-20
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares at the beginning of the year 6,049,587 604.96 6,049,587 604.96
Add : Shares issued during the year - - - -
Less : Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of year 6,049,587 604.96 6,049,587 604.96

(ii) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote pershare. The company declares and pays dividendsin Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of the liquidation of the
company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company in proportion to the number
of the sharesheld.

(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company:

Name of the Shareholder Number Amount Number Amount
Alfamont ( Mauritius) Limited, the Holding Company 4537189 453.72 4537189 453.72

(iv) Equity shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares along with the number of equity shares held is as given below:

Name of the Shareholder Number % Number %
Alfamont ( Mauritius) Limited, the Holding Company 4537189 75.00 4537189 75.00

(v) Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the last five years
During the last five financial years, the Company has not allotted any bonus shares.

(vi) Issue of shares for consideration other than cash
During the preceding five financial years, the Company has not issued any share for consideration other than cash

(vii) Dividend paid and proposed

Refer Note 44(c )
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Capital Securities General Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Income
As at 1st April, 2019 7.51 42537 2,200.52  9,826.70 13.94 12,473.35
Profit for the year - - - 1,288.01 - 1,288.01
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - 2.84 2.84
Dividend paid - - - (729.31) - (729.31)
(including dividend distribution tax of ¥124.35 lacs)
As at 31st March, 2020 7.51 425.37 2,200.52 10,385.41 16.78 13,034.89
Profit for the year - - 129.08 845.78 - 974.86
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - (1.08) (1.08)
Dividend paid - - - (604.96) - (604.96)
General Reserves - - - (129.08) - (129.08)
As at 31st March, 2021 7.51 425.37 2,329.60 10,497.15 15.70 13,274.65

Purpose of the reserve:

Securities premium : The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium.
General reserve: The reserve is a distributable reserve maintained by the company out of fransfers made from annual profits.
Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the company as earned till date, less any fransfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.
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Particulars

As at
31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2020

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

19a DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 678.04 715.02
MAT Credit Enfitlement - (42.31)
TOTAL 678.04 672.71
(i) The major components of income tax expense are as follows:
Statement of profit or loss Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Current income tax charge 321.01 424.45
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (36.98) 66.00
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit or loss 284.03 490.45
Reconciliation
Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax 1,140.50 1,783.88
Enacted tax rate in India 29.12% 29.12%
Computed tax expense 332.11 519.47
Differences due to:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (11.69) 3.82
Income exempt from Income taxes - -
Deduction allowed under Section 35 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - (1.64)
Changes in tax rate 62.17 -
Others (61.58) (97.19)
(11.10) (95.01)
Current Income Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss 321.01 424.46
(i) Deferred tax relates to following
Recognised in Balance Sheet Recognised in Profit or Loss
Particulars As at As at Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (542.86) 5617.61) 25.25 28.92
Expenses allowable on payment basis 14.31 10.86 (3.45) 8.21
Other items giving rise to femporary differences - 42.31 - -
Fair valuation of financial instruments (149.49) (208.27) (568.78) 28.87
Deferred tax asset / (liability) (678.04) 672.71)
Net (income)/ expense (36.98) 66.00
Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
19b PROVISIONS (NON-CURRENT)
Pension 34.41 -
TOTAL 34.41 -
20 BORROWINGS
From Banks
Bank Overdraft* 0.05 44.03
TOTAL 0.05 44.03

*The overdraft facility is secured against bank deposits ( previous year against the specified units of mutual funds refer Note 38
overdraft facility carries interest rate MCLR with spread of 1% p.a.).
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Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020
21  TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises 45.86 19.46
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1.482.14 1.275.98
micro, small and medium enterprises
TOTAL 1,528.00 1,295.44

The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the
definition of micro, small and medium enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises has been made in the financial statements based
on information received and available with the Company, which is relied upon by the auditors. Further in the view of the
management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
material.

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (fo be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year 45.86 19.46
i) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid -
ii) Interest due on (i) above and the unpaid interest - -
iv) Interest paid on all delayed payments under the MSMED Act. 0.04 0.01
v) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year - -
vi) Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (iv) above - -
vii) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
viil) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years - -

22  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payable for capital expenditure 4.37 13.23
Security deposits 9.20 9.22
Advances from customers 35.02 50.29
Unpaid dividend* 12.72 12.69
TOTAL a3 8543
*There are no amounts due for payments to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 asatyearend.

23  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 225.60 140.54
Other Payables 27.70 -
TOTAL __253.30 _140.54

24  PROVISIONS
Gratuity 19.31 24.86
Compensated absences 21.95 15.01
Pension 9.73 31.02
TOTAL 5099 7089
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Manufactured products (net of rebates and discounts)

Gelatine 11,126.48 10,445.42
DCP - animal feed grade 2,306.56 2,749.14
Ossein - 172.97
Bone meal products 52.35 57.47
NET SALES 13,485.39 13,425.00
Reconciliation of revenue from operations with contract price

Contract price 13,490.42 13.431.90
Less: discounts, rebates and others 5.03 6.90
NET SALES 13,485.39 13,425.00
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26

27

28

29

30

Particulars

Year ended

31st March, 2021

Year ended
31st March, 2020

OTHER INCOME
Operating Income

Sale of scrap/Coal ash
Export incentives and duty drawback

Insurance claim

Provision no longer required written back
(including doubftful debts recovered)
Foreign exchange gain

Miscellaneous income

TOTAL (A)

Non-operating Income

Interest income
From banks
From others

Change in fair valuation of current / non-current
investments in mutual funds

TOTAL (B)
TOTAL (A) + (B)

COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

Raw Materials:
Opening Stock
Add : Purchases
Less : Closing Stock

Raw materials consumed

Particulars of Raw materials consumed
Material description

Crushed bones
Hydrochloric acid
Others

TOTAL

CHANGE IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Opening Stocks
Finished Goods

Work-in-progress

Closing Stocks
Finished Goods

Work-in-progress
Net (Increase) / Decrease

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

TOTAL

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest on income tax
Other borrowing costs

TOTAL

9.61 5.57
4.76 7.13
1.82 3.19
- 33.41
0.57 4.42
7.42 4.81
24.18 58.53
109.29 56.34
11.91 121.20 25.79 82.13
405.32 415.17
526.52 497.30
550.70 555.83
1.300.14 1,044.21
9.366.28 8.293.31
1,724.49 1.300.14
8,941.93 8,037.38
6,193.66 5,755.48
475.38 369.50
2,272.89 1.912.40
8,941.93 8,037.38
885.35 460.52
1,119.58 2,004.93 1,075.59 1,536.11
615.37 885.35
1,.360.79 1,976.16 1,119.58 2,004.93
28.77 (468.82)
1.016.41 1.010.74
101.71 101.00
31.41 34.13
1,149.53 1,145.87
13.32 14.80
0.02 24.93
3.35 8.48
16.69 48.21
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31

32

33

Year ended
31st March, 2020

Year ended
31st March, 2021

Particulars

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation & Amortisation expense 148.54 137.25
TOTAL 148.54 137.25
OTHER EXPENSE
Consumption of stores and spare parts 88.34 126.43
Rates and taxes (other than taxes on income) 17.88 16.10
Effluent expenses 26.91 24.85
Insurance 19.90 12.42
Repairs and maintenance:

- Building 30.03 28.59

- Plant and equipment 250.43  280.46 310.53 339.12
Auditors’ remuneration (*Refer note below) 5.64 7.91
Freight and delivery charges 99.73 98.32
Commission fo selling agents 10.52 15.48
Rent 13.27 14.11
Travelling 1.83 12.25
Directors’ fees 4.92 4.41
Advertisement 3.12 4.66
Research and Development expenses (Refer Note 41) 6.34 6.92
Sundry balances written off 1.15 0.22
Interest paid to micro, small and medium enterprises 0.04 0.01
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer Note 40) 34.35 15.65
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment 0.10 -
Miscellaneous expenses 140.53 194.31
TOTAL 755.04 893.17
Auditors’ Remuneration®
Statutory audit fees 2.00 2.50
Limited review 1.20 1.50
Tox Audit 0.80 2.00
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses and GST 0.64 1.91
TOTAL 5.64 7.91

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO IND AS - 19 "EMPLOYEE BENEFITS"

i) Gratuity: In accordance with the applicable laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('The
Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment fo vested employees on retirement
(subject to completion of five years of continuous employment), death, incapacitation or fermination of employment that are
based on last drawn salary and tenure of employment. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial
valuation on the reporting date and the Company makes annual conftribution to the gratuity fund administered by Life Insurance
Corporation of India under Group Gratuity Scheme.

The disclosure inrespect of the defined Gratuity Plan are given below:

Defined benefit plans
As at As at
31stMarch, 2021 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Balance Sheet

Present value of plan liabilities 305.37 283.67
Fair value of plan assets 286.07 258.81
Asset/(Liability) recognised (19.30) (24.86)
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Particulars Present value Fair value
of obligations of Plan assets
B. Movements in plan assets and plan liabilities
As at 1st April 2019 278.42 244.67
Current service cost 17.80 -

Adjustment in opening balance - -
Past service cost - -
Interest Cost/(Income) 20.85 18.32

Return on plan assets excluding interest income - (1.39)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (5.83) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising due to change in demographic assumptions (1.14) -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 2.74 -
Employer contributions - 26.38
Benefit payments (29.17) 29.17)
As at 31st March 2020 283.67 258.81
As at 1st April 2020 283.67 258.81
Current service cost 18.64 -

Adjustment in opening balance - -
Past service cost - -
Interest Cost/(Income) 19.40 17.70

Return on plan assets excluding interest income - (1.01)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 7.00 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising due to change in demographic assumptions 1.23 -
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments (8.15) -
Employer contributions - 26.99
Benefit payments (16.43) (16.43)
As at 31st March 2021 305.36 286.06
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

C. Statement of Profit and Loss
Employee Benefit Expenses:
Current Service Cost 18.64 17.81
Interest Cost 1.70 2.52
Past Service cost (vested benefits) - -
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - -
Interest cost/(income) - -

Total amount recognised in Statement of profit & loss 20.34 20.33

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognised for the period 0.07 4.23)
Asset limit effect - -
Return on plan assets excluding net interest 1.01 1.39

Unrecognised Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss from previous period - -
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 1.08 (2.84)
D.  Assumptions

With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans at their fair value on the balance
sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Financial Assumptions

Discount rate 6.33% 6.84%
Salary Escalation Rate
Management Employees 4.00% 6.00%
Non-management Employees 7.00% 6.00%
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34

35

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Demographic Assumptions
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees in no. of years

Management Employees 14 14

Non-management Employees 9 11
Mortality Rate IALM (2006-08) Ult. IALM (2006-08) Ult.
Attrition Rate

Management Employees 2% 1%

Non-management Employees 4% 1%
Retirement Age 60 60

Adjusted Average Future Services - -

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption
Discount rate +1% (16.21) 18.11
Salary Escalation Rate +1% 17.99 (16.40)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. Itis based on a change in the key
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity o the assumption, the same method used
to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing
the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

ii) Compensated Absences: The Company permits encashment of compensated absence accumulated by their employees on
retirement, separation and during the course of service. The liability in respect of the Company, for outstanding balance of leave af
the balance sheet date is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary. The
disclosure inrespect of the defined Compensated Absences are given below:

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 21.94 18.88
Balance sheet liability 21.94 15.01
iii) Pension

The retirement benefits pension will be fixed amount of INR 565/- per month for an employee only after retiring from the company and
if service rendered by the employee is 25 years and above at the time of retirement.

A pensioner may opt an option to commute INR 34,000/- as a lump sum once in lifetime. After commutation of pension memberwon’t
get any monthly pension. If any employee expire his/her spouse will get lumpsum benefit of INR 34,000/-, thereafter no monthly
pension will be payable. Liability determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary. The disclosure in respect of pension liability are given below :

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 9.73 31.02

Balance sheet liability 4413 -

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Estimated amount of contract remaining fo be executed on - 269.15

capital account not provided for (net of advances)
TOTAL - 269.15

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims not acknowledged as debts (excluding further interest, if any):

Excise duty 240.88 240.88
Income taxes - 12.35
Sales tax 3.76 33.91
Land revenue cess 25.97 25.97
TOTAL 270.61 313.11
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36  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Enterprise where the control exists Relationship
Jumbo World Holdings Limited Ultimate Holding Company
Alfamont (Mauritius) Limited Holding Company

Other related parties

Aasman Management Services Pvt. Ltd., Dandvati Investments & Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd., Firestorm Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd.,
GWL Properties Ltd., Harshit Finlease & Investments Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo Investments Ltd., Jumbo
World Holdings (India) Pvt. Ltd., Primo Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., SMN Engineers Ltd., Starfire Investments Ltd., Pious Investments Pvt. Ltd.

Key managerial personnel

Ashok K. Kapur Whole-time director
Mahesh Verma Company Secretary
Garvita Asati Chief Financial Officer

Non-Executive Directors

Late Justice Gulab Gupta (upto 07.04.2021)
Mr. Mohan C. Pant

Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri

Late Mr. Sanjeev Jain (upto 03.01.2020)

Mr. Ravindra K. Raje

Mrs. Drushti R. Desai

Notes:

() Related party relationshipsis as identified by the management and relied upon by the Auditors.
(i No amountsin respect of related parties have been written off / written back during the year, nor has any provision been made

for doubtful debts / receivables during the year, except as discussed above.

(i) Allrelated party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and are on arm’slength basis.

(iv) Key Managerial persons who are under the employment of the company are entitled to post-employment benefits (defined
benefit gratuity plan) recognised as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" is the financial statements and short term employee
benefits in the form of premium paid by company for group health insurance plan. As these employee benefits are lumpsum
amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation /premium payment for the company as a whole, the same is not included

above.

Particulars of transaction and outstanding balances with related parties

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Transactions with related parties Nil Nil

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel

(i) Remuneration Paid to Mr. Ashok K. Kapur 40.20 40.20

(i) Remuneration Paid to Mr. Mahesh Verma 12.90 13.22

(i) Remuneration Paid to Ms. Garvita Asafi 5.06 5.26

As the Gratuity and Compensated absences are computed for all the employees in
Managerial Personnel cannot be individually be identified.

Transactions with Non-Executive Directors (Sitting fee paid)

Late Justice Gulab Gupta (upto 07.04.2021) 0.99
Mr. Mohan C. Pant 0.99
Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri 0.99
Mr. Ravindra K. Raje 0.85
Late Mr. Sanjeev Jain (upto 03.01.2020) -
Mrs. Drushti R. Desai 0.96
37 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit available for equity shareholders 845.78
Weighted average number of equity shares 6,049,587
Nominal value of equity share 10.00
Earnings per share - Basic / Diluted 13.98

aggregate, the amount relating to Key

0.96
0.99
0.50
0.76
0.55
0.66

1,288.01
6,049,587
10.00
21.29

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021 64



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
(Allamounts in Indian rupee lakh, unless otherwise stated)

38 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments in Mutual Funds (at NAV) - Unquoted, non trade, fully paid-up

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars Fair Value No. of Total  Fair Value No. of Total
Per unit ___ Units Value  Perunit __ Units Value
IDFC Bond Fund - Short Term Plan - Growth (Regular Plan) 44.67 247,085 110.36 41.54 247,085 102.65
formerly known as IDFC Super Saver Income Fund - Short Term Plan
HDFC Balanced Advantaged Fund-Direct - Growth - - - 167.16 127,311  200.07
HDFC Corporate Bond Fund- Growth 24,93 1,238,727  308.79
IDFC Bond Fund - Medium Term - Regular - Growth 36.55 600,833  219.59 34.14 600,833 205.15
formerly known as IDFC Super Saver Income Fund Medium Term Plan
ICICI Prudential Long Term Bond Fund - Regular - Growth - - - 67.27 830,126  558.46
IDFC Bond Fund - Income Plan - Regular - Growth - - - 4981 777,167  387.11
Nippon India Dynamic Bond Fund - Growth 28.78 1,671,699  481.12 26.82 1,671,699 448.27
ABSL Dynamic Bond Fund - Retail - Regular - Growth - - 31.86 823,118  262.27
Nippon India Short Term Fund- Growth Plan 40.79 960,791 391.95 37.78 960,791  362.94
ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund Regular Plan Growth Option 45.86 1,097,932  503.55 42,17 1,097,932  462.99
Nippon India Income Fund-Growth Plan - - - 66.74 378248  252.44
ABSL Income Fund - Regular Plan - Growth Option - - - 90.09 613,470 552.67
ABSL Corporate Bond Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 85.90 661,801 568.52 7825 133,977 104.84
formerly known as ABSL Short Term Fund
ABSL Savings Fund- Growth-Direct - - - 400.83 9,276 37.18
UTI- Credit Risk Fund - Direct - Growth - - - 0.20 2,221,060 4.40
formerly known as UTl-income Opportunities Fund
Nippon India Low Duration -Direct - Growth 3,020.22 3,356 101.35 - - -
Kotak Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Growth 50.32 980,137  493.16 - - -
Kotak Dynamic Bond Fund - Regular plan - Growth 28.99 706,137  204.73 - - -
IDFC Banking & PSU Debt Fund -Direct plan - Growth 19.54 616,880 120.54 17.96 616,880 110.82
IDFC Corporate Bond Fund -Direct plan - Growth 156.27 776,229 118.51 13.96 776,229 108.38
IDFC Bond Fund - Short Term plan - Direct - Growth 46.86 252,755 118.45 43.36 252,755  109.60
ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - DP - Growth 23.51 1,015,309  238.67 21.51 1015309 218.39
ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund- Growth 22.69 909,165  206.27 - - -
ICICI Prudential Banking & PSU Debt Fund -Direct - Growth 25.62 463,615 118.76 23.64 463,615 109.62
ICICI Prudential Medium Term Fund - DP - Growth 36.24 332,819 120.60 33.21 332,819 110.54
ABSL Banking & PSU Debt fund-Direct - Growth 289.72 77,180  223.61 266.96 77,180 206.04
ABSL Dynamic Bond Fund-Retail-Growth (Segregated units) 140 823,118 11.51 1.46 823,118 12.01
ABSL Credit Risk Fund-Growth Direct (Segregated units) 0.42 3,294,855 13.70 0.43 3,294,855 14.29
Nippon India Banking & PSU Debt Fund -Direct - Growth 16.42 2,231,519  366.44 15.09 2,227,881 336.09
ABSL Credit Risk Fund-Growth Direct* - - - 14.71 3,294,855 484.70
formerly known as ABSL Corporate Bond Fund
HDFC Credit Risk Debt Fund - Direct - Growth* - - - 17.44 2,139,597  373.21
HDFC Equity Savings Fund -Direct Plan - Growth - - - 3522 415,125 146.22
TOTAL 5,040.18 6,281.34
*Provided as Security against the Overdraft facility from Banks (also, refer Note 20)
39  CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Investments in Mutual Funds (at NAV) - unquoted, non trade, fully paid-up
SBI Saving fund -Regular plan-growth - - - 31.00 575698 178.45
TOTAL - 178.45
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40 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Company. As part of initiatives under
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken projects in the areas of environment / river protection,
education, livelihood, healthcare, sanitation, rural development, promotion of sports and cultural activities, which are specified in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The amount spent on the same is given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 19.66 14.32

Amount spent during the year on:
Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
On purposes other than above 34.35 15.65

41 RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Revenue expenditure
Salaries and wages 10.04 10.81
Other expenses 1.46 0.43

Capital Expenditure
Plant & Machinery - -

42  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

(i) Fairvalue of cash and short-term deposits, frade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short
term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of
these instruments.

(i) Financialinstruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest
rates and individual credit worthiness of the counter-party. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for
expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their carrying
amounts.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation

technique:

Level 1. quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: othertechniques for which allinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly

orindirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows:

FVOCI FVTPL Amortised  Total fair  Carrying

Note 2(xiii) Note2 (xiii) cost value amount
31st March, 2020
Financial assets
Investments - 6,459.79 - 6,459.79 6,459.79
Trade receivables - 2,014.61 2,014.61 2,014.61
Cash and cash equivalents - - 886.77 886.77 886.77
Bank balance - - 87.26 87.26 87.26
Loan - - 44.67 44.67 44.67
Ofther financial assets - - 164.76 164.76 164.76
Total - 6,459.79 3,198.07 9,657.86 9,657.86
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 44.03 44.03 44.03
Trade payables - - 1,295.44 1,295.44 1,295.44
Others - - 85.43 85.43 85.43
Total financial liabilities - - 1,424.90 1,424.90 1,424.90
31st March, 2021
Financial assets
Investments - 5,040.18 - 5,040.18 5,040.18
Trade receivables — - 1.786.65 1,786.65 1,786.65
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,230.33 1,230.33 1,230.33
Bank balance - - 970.00 970.00 970.00
Loan - - 34.36 34.36 34.36
Ofthers financial assets - - 247.49 247.49 247.49
Total - 5,040.18 4,268.83 9,309.01 9,309.01
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 0.05 0.05 0.05
Trade payables - - 1,528.00 1,528.00 1,528.00
Ofthers - - 61.31 61.31 61.31
Total financial liabilities - - 1,589.36 1,589.36 1,589.36

Fair value estimation

For financial instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, a three level fair value hierarchy is used that reflects the
significance of inputs used in the measurements. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted pricesin active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices for identical instruments

e Level 2: directly or indirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

¢ Level 3: inputs which are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities which are carried at fair value, the classification of fair value calculations by category is summarised

below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31st March, 2020
Assets at fair value 6,459.79 - -
31st March, 2021
Assets at fair value 5,040.18 - -

There were no significant changes in classification and no significant movements between the fair value hierarchy classifications
of financial assets and financial liabilities during the years.
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43

RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management objectives and policies :

"The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s
activity expose it to market risk, liquidity risk, commodity risk and credit risk. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by
the Risk Management Committee and governed by overall direction of Board of Directors of the Company.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result fromm a change in the price of a financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk
sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits , foreign currency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Risk Management
(i) Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, Ageing analysis Credit limits and letters of credit
frade receivables, financial Credit ratings and Performance guarantees.

instruments, financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

(i) Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit
forecasts lines and borrowing facilities
(i) Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
variable rates
(iv) Market risk-foreign exchange Future commercial transactions  Cash flow forecasting Forward foreign exchange
recognised financial assets and  Sensitivity analysis contracts

liabilities not denominated in
Indian rupees

(v) Commodity risk Purchase of Raw Material As per production Procurement and inventory
planning and budgeting  strategy

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the
company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic
tfrends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual credit limits are set accordingly. The
Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the
company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. The company considers reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. Financial assets are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the company. The
company provides for overdue outstanding as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors. which are evaluated on a case to
case basis.

The Company’s concentration of risk with respect to trade receivablesis low, as its customer’s base is widely spread across the length
and breadth of the country and majority of the customers are with sound financial health.

The average credit period extended to customersranges within 30-90 days

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Asat As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

(a) Ageing oftrade receivable

From the date of invoice

0 - 6 months 1.786.65 2,014.61

6 - 9 months - -

9 - 12 months - -

beyond 12 months - -

TOTAL 1,786.65 2,014.61
(b) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Opening provision 5.03 31.10

Additional provision made - -

Less Bad debts written off / recovered 2.22 26.07

Closing provisions 2.81 5.03
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44

LIQUIDITY RISK

"Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price.The
Company’s tfreasury department is responsible for maintenance of liquidity (including quasi liquidity), continuity of funding as well as
timely settlement of debts. In addition, policies related to mitigation of risks are overseen by senior management. Management
monitors the Company’s net liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows vis a vis debt service fulfilment obligation."

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

Particulars As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020
0-1year/ 1to5years Total 0-1year/ 1to5years Total
on Demand on Demand
Borrowings 0.05 - 0.05 44.03 - 44.03
Trade payables 1,528.00 - 1,528.00 1,295.44 - 1.295.44
Other financial liabilities 61.31 - 61.31 85.43 - 85.43
TOTAL 1,589.36 - 1,589.36 1,424.90 - 1,424.90

MARKET RISK- INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. In order to balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the
interest rate risk, finance department performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company is not exposed to
significantinterest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

MARKET RISK- FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk towards honouring of export/ import commitments. Management evaluates
exchange rate exposure in this connection in terms of its established risk management policies which includes the use of derivatives
like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge risk of exposure in foreign currency. The company is not exposed to foreign
currency risk at the respective reporting dates.

COMMODITY RISK
Principal Raw Material for Company’s products is Crushed bone, HCL, Lime and Coal as a fuel. The Company sources its major raw
material requirement from domestic supplierslocated in various part of India.

The Company effectively manages with availability of material as well as price volatility based on the following:
« Raw materials are procured from different sources at competitive prices.
o Alfernative sources are developed for uninterrupted supply of raw materials.

« Demand and supply are external factors on which company has no control; however the Company plansits production and sales
from the experience gained in the past and on-going study and appraisal of the market dynamics, competition, economic
policies and growth patterns of different segments of users of company’s products.

o Specific stepstoreduce the gap between demand and supply by expanding its customer base, delivery mechanisms, etc.
e Properinventory control systems have been putinplace.

The Risk committee of the Company comprising members from Board of Directors and the operations has developed and enacted a
risk management strategy regarding commodity Price risk and its mitigation.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
(a) Capital risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :

« safeguard their ability fo continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, and

¢ maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

(b) No asset has been pledged as security, except mutual funds referred in Note 38
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(c) Dividends
The Company follows the policy of Dividend for any financial year as may be decided by Board considering financial
performance of the company and other internal and external factors.

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

On Equity Shares

Dividends not recognised at the end of reporting period 604.96 604.96
Since year end, the directors have recommended the payment of a

final dividend of #10.00 per fully paid up equity share (31st March, 2020 -

¥10.00 per fully paid up equity shares). The proposed dividend is subject

to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

45 The novel corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic confinues to spread rapidly across the globe including India. In March, 2020, the
COVID-19 outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization. COVID-19 has taken its toll on not just human
life, but business and financial markets too. Various governments have introduced a variety of measures to contain the spread of the
virus. The Central and State Governments and local bodies had announced various lock down measures which has significant
impact on all the industries across the nation. The operations of the Company have also been scaled down as a consequence of the
nationwide lockdown. The company as taken reasonable steps to normalise the operations and efficiencies, however due to
prevailing economic conditions, mainly on account of shortfage and quality of raw material, the overall business of the company
remains partially affected during the year.

The management has, at the time of approving the financial statements, assessed the potential impact of the COVID-19 on the
Company. Based on the current assessment, the management has evaluated the impact on its assets and liabilities particularly,
inventory, investments, frade receivables, advances, etc. based oninternal and external source of information and concluded that
the carrying value of these assets are recoverable and no uncertainty exists on meeting the financial liabilities in the foreseeable
future.

46 The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of Ossein and Gelatine. Since all these segments meet the aggregation
criteria as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating segments’, the management considers these as a single reportable
segment. Accordingly, no further disclosure is required to be furnished.

47  Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are subject to formal confirmation and reconciliations. The Management, however, is
confident that the impact whereof, if any, for the year on the financial statements will not be material.

48 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has
been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come info effect has not been notified. The
Company will assess the impact of the Code and recognise the same when the Code becomes effective.

49 The previousyear’s figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever required to conformto current period’s classification.

Signatures to note 1 to 49 For and on behalf of the Board
Ashok K. Kapur Deepak Chaudhari
Whole-time Director Chairman
DIN:00126807 DIN:00456234

Place : Jabalpur Mahesh Verma Garvita Asati

Date : 29th June, 2021 Head - Finance & Secretarial  Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Sixtieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Narmada Gelatines Limited will be held on Tuesday 21st
September, 2021 at 11:30a.m., at Hotel Narmada Jacksons, South Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482001, to fransact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 including the Reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this respect to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s)
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021, including the Balance Sheet
as at that date and the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon as laid before this Meeting be and are hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and in this respect to consider and if thought fit, o
pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors, dividend @ 100%i.e. ¥10.00 per Equity Share of ¥
10/- each fully paid-up, be and is hereby declared in respect of the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and that the dividend be
paid to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Equity Shareholders as on14th September, 2021 or to their
mandatees."

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Ravindra K Raje (DIN 00112003), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment and in this respect to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ravindra K Raje (DIN 00112003), Director of the Company, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself
forre-appointment, be and s hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4, Re-Appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur (DIN -00126807) as the Whole-time Director of the Company and in this respect to consider and
if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and approval of the Board and
subject to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rulesmade
thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur (DIN - 00126807),
as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of two years with effect from June 1,2021 to May 31,2023 and to the payment of
remuneration to him as per the terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement attached hereto, which is hereby
approved and sanctioned with authority to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said re-
appointment and / or agreementin such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Ashok K Kapur.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr. Ashok K. Kapur, shall not exceed the overall ceiling of the total managerial
remuneration as provided under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may be prescribed from time to fime.

RESOLVED FURTHERTHAT the Board be andis hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and execute all such documents,
instruments and writings as may be required and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Committee of Directors or
Director(s) to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

5. Appointment of Mr. Prakash M. Nene (DIN 00164133) as an independent director for aterm of five years from 21st September, 2021 to
20th September, 2026 and in this respect to consider and if thought fit, fo pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
force) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, and pursuant to
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Prakash M. Nene (DIN
00164133), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria forindependence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act
and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, for aterm of five consecutive years commencing from 21st September, 2021 to 20th September 2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby authorised fo do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or
expedientto give effect to thisresolution.”

6. Appointment of Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy (Mr. Moorthy) - (DIN: 02797916) as an independent director for a term of five years from 21st
September, 2021 to 20th September 2026 and in this respect fo consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") read with Schedule IV to the Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
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force) and the Companies (Appointment and Quallification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time fo time, and pursuant to
the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy (Mr. Moorthy)
- (DIN: 02797916), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria forindependence as provided under Section 149(6) of
the Act, Regulation 16(1) (b) and Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to refire by rotation, for a term of five consecutive years commencing from 21st September, 2021 to 20th
September2026.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the
Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or
expedient to give effect to thisresolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahesh Verma
Head -Finance & Secretarial

Jabalpur
29th June, 2021

Registered Office:
CARAVS, RoomNo. 28,
15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur-482001

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The following Statement set out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice:

ltem No. 4
Mr. Ashok K. Kapur’s previous term as the Whole-time director of the Company expired on May 31,2021.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution
passed on May 26, 2021 approved appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur as the Whole-time Director of the Company with effect from June 1,
2021in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 196 and 197 read with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of
two yearsi.e. up to May 31,2023, subject to approval of members. Mr. Kapur has attained the age of 74 years and as per Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013, the approval of shareholders by Special Resolution at the general meeting of the Company or approval of the
Central Government would be required for his re-appointment as Whole-time Director. This explanatory statement may also be read and
treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of Section 190 of the Companies Act,2013.

Mr Ashok K Kapuris a Mechanical Engineer having 50 years of experience in Gelatine industry. He has contributed immensely to the growth
of the Company and his vast and rich experience in Gelatine Industry will be beneficial to the company. He has been the Chairman of
Ossein & Gelatine Manufactures’ Association of India and a Director of Gelatine Manufacturers Association of Asia Pacific and the
Chairman of Ossein and Gelatine Panel of CAPEXIL. He is overallin-charge of the Company embracing the whole gamut of operations.

The details of remuneration payable to Mr. Ashok K. Kapur and the terms and conditions of the appointment are given below:
1. Period of appointment - Two years from June 1,2021 to May 31, 2023.

2. Nature of Duties: Mr. Kapur shall devote his whole time and attention to the business of the Company and carry out such duties as may
be entrusted to him by the Board from fime to time and exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to the
superinfendence, control and directions of the Board in connection with and in the best interests of the business of the Company.

3. Remuneration, perquisites, allowances and benefits: Amount

() Remuneration:
Basic Pay Rs. 1,75,000 p.m.

(i) Perquisites & Allowances:
HRA/Company Accommodation Rs. 87,500 p.m.
Conveyance Allowance Rs. 4,000 p.m.
Special Allowance Rs. 25,000 p.m.
Leave Travel Allowance Rs. 5,000 p.m.
Medical reimbursement of actual expenses / allowance for self and family Rs. 17,500 p.m.

(i) Otherbenefits:
(a) Earned/ privilege leave - As perthe rules of the Company
(b) Company’scontribution to provident fund and superannuation fund - As per the rules of the Company
(c) Gratuity - As perthe rules of the Company
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(d) Encashmentofleave - As perthe rules of the Company
(e) Company telephone - Use of the Company’s telephone at the residence for official purposes, as per the rules of the
Company

(iv) Minimum Remuneration: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year closing on and
after March 31, 2021, the Company incurs a loss or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay to Mr. Ashok K Kapur the
remuneration by way of salary, performance bonus and other allowances not exceeding the limits specified under Part Il of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof, for the time being in
force), orsuch otherlimits as may be prescribed by the government from time to time as minimum remuneration.

4. The agreement, executed between the Company and Mr. Ashok K. Kapur, may be terminated by either party by giving three
months’ notice in writing of such termination.

5. The terms and conditions of the appointment may be altered and varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in its discretion
deem fit, subject to such approvals as may be required.

6. The terms and conditions of the appointment of Mr. Kapur also include clauses pertaining to adherence with the Code of Conduct,
no conflict of interest with the Company and maintenance of confidentiality.

7. Mr. Kapur shallnot become interested or otherwise concerned, directly or through his spouse and/or children, in any selling agency of
the Company.

No director, except Mr. Ashok K Kapur, is deemed to be interested or concerned in his re-appointment and remuneration payable to
him as a director in whole-time employment. The terms of re-appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur, as stated in this notice, may be
treated asthe abstract of terms and conditions of re-appointment and memorandum of interest under Section 190 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The copies of relevant resolutions of the Board and agreement with respect to the re-appointment is available for
inspection by members at the registered office of the Company during working hours on any working day fill the date of this AGM.

The Directors are of the view that the re-appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur as Whole-time Director will be beneficial to the operations
of the company. The Board accordingly recommends the resolution as set out in Item 4 of the Notice for approval of the members.

ltemNo.5
The Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying hisintention to propose the
candidature of Mr. Prakash M Nene (DIN00164133) for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Prakash M Nene (DIN 00164133), aged 67 years is B.E. (Hons.) Electronics, MBA from B.L.T.S. Pilani. He has a vast experience of 44
years in various areas such as financial services industry, Business Planning, Venture Capital, Asset Management, Capital Markets,
and Mergers & Acquisitions.

He has managed various assignments of core finance and commercial functions such as accounting and financial control, fund
raising, direct and indirect taxation, purchase and inventory control and other efficiency improvement programmes at
manufacturing divisions/units.

He also worked as lead businesses as Supervisory Director and finance function as CFO at large Conglomerates to give directions to
operating subsidiaries in business/ strategic matters and lead investment activities.

Currently, he is acting as an advisor to large Fund houses and Corporates on all matters of Fund Management, M & A, and Corporate
Strategy efc.

He is presently a designated partner of Earth Advisors LLP and partner of Megadelta Capital Advisors LLP.

During the years he was associated with many corporate such as Shriram Bearings Limited/ Shriram Needle Bearing Industries Limited,
SRF Limited, SRF Overseas Limited, DLF Industries Ltd. New Delhi, Jumbo World Holdings Ltd (JWHL) Dubai, U.A.E, Bharti Enterprises Ltd.
and Multiples Alt. Asset Management, Mumbai.

He does not hold any sharesin the company.

The other details of Mr. Nene in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice.
Mr. Nene is not related to any Director of the Company.

Interms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Prakash M Nene fulfils the conditions
specified in the Act for his appointment as an Independent Director. After taking into consideration the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Nene’s vast knowledge and varied experience will be of
great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.5 of this Notice relating to the appointment of Mr.
Prakash M. Nene as an "Independent Director’, not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five consecutive years w.e.f. 21st .
September, 2021 upto 20th September, 2026, for your approval.

Mr. Nene has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has also received:-

@ theconsentinwriting to act as Directorand

(i) intimation that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) o declaration to the effect that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to any Order issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).
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A copy of the draft lefter for the appointment of Mr. Prakash M. Nene as Independent Director setting out the terms & conditions
would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business
hours on any working day and the same has also been put up on the Company website www.narmadagelatines.com.

Except, Mr. Prakash M. Nene, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in
the Resolution at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

ltem No. 6
The Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, signifying his intention to propose the
candidature of Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy (Mr. Moorthy) - (DIN: 02797916) for the office of Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Moorthy - (DIN: 02797916) aged 71 years holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce (with Honours) from Calcutta University and a
Degree in Law (LLB) from Utkal University, Bhubaneswar, Odisha. He is a Company Secretary by profession. He also holds "Certificate
of Practice", CP no. being CP-9733. He has also passed the Intermediate Examination of the Institute of Cost and Works Accountants
of India, Kolkata.

Mr. Moorthy has gained expertise in the field of restructuring such as mergers / acquisitions, resource mobilization through public
issue/rights issue, QIP/ FCCB/ GDR and Corporate Governance. Undertaken scores of mergers/demergers in various listed
companies such as erstwhile Brooke Bond India Limited, Ceeta Industries Limited and erstwhile Shaw Wallace & Company Limited. He
has held various positions in Sourcing, Secretarial, Legal and Finance Departments in companies such as Brooke Bond India Limited,
Kolkata (since merged with Hindustan Unilever Limited), Utkal Asbestos Limited, Bhubaneswar, Ceeta Industries Limited, Kolkata,
before joining erstwhile Shaw Wallace & Company Limited, (since merged with United Spirits Limited, Bengaluru - now a subsidiary of
Diageo plc., U.K.) as General Manager (Finance) and Company Secretary, overseeing the secretarial/legal/finance functions of its
various liquor/beer manufacturing, real estate and consumer electronic subsidiary companies (both listed and unlisted) and its
associate companies. He also acted as Company Secretary in Hindustan Dorr-Oilver Limited, Mumbai and Gordon Woodroffe
Limited, Chennai. Affer successful career of 2 decades in various corporate bodies, he retired from United Spirits Limited as "Assistant
Vice President - Secretarial/Corporate Legal' in December, 2010. However, he continued in the capacity of "Advisor" on retainership
basis till September, 2015 in their Corporate Legal/Secretarial Department.

He s presently on the Board of GWL Properties Limited and MPIL Corporation Limited.
He does not hold any shares in the company.

The other details of Mr. Moorthy in ferms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this
Notice. Mr. Moorthy is not related to any Director of the Company.

In ferms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Moorthy fulfils the conditions
specified in the Act for his appointment as an Independent Director. After taking intfo consideration the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Moorthy’s vast knowledge and varied experience willbe
of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution atf Item No.6 of this Notice as a Special Resolution (since Mr.
Moorthy will attain the age of 75 years within the term of 5 years) relating to the appointment of Mr. Moorthy as an "Independent
Director", not liable to retire by rotation for a period of five consecutive years w.e.f. 21st September, 2021 upto 20th September, 2026,
foryour approval.

Mr. Moorthy has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Company has also received:-

@ theconsentinwriting to act as Director and

(i) infimationthat he is not disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) a declaration to the effect that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to any Order issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mr. Moorthy as Independent Director setting out the terms & conditions would be
available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on
any working day and the same has also been put up on the Company website www.narmadagelatines.com.

Except, Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in
the Resolution at Itfem No. 6 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahesh Verma
Head -Finance & Secretarial
Place : Jabalpur

29th June, 2021
Registered Office: CARAVS, Room No. 28
15, CivilLines, Jabalpur-482001

ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021 74



<@> NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED

Notes:

(@) Inview of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and pursuant to the Circular
No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA") followed
by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,2021 and all other relevant circulars issued
from time to time (collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars"). MCA has permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ('AGM")
through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In case the company has taken or received permission from the relevant authorities to conduct the AGM at it
registered office or at any other place as provided under section 96 of the Act, after following any advisories issued from such
authorities issued from such authorities, the company may hold such meeting with physical presence of some members. In
accordance with the above mentioned MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") and with the
permission of authorities, the AGM of the Company is being held with physical presence of the members as provided under Section
96 of the Act.

() The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Register will remnain closed from 15th September to 21st September, 2021 (both days
inclusive).

(c) The Company is providing facility for voting on the business set out in the Notice by electronic means. Instructions and other
information relating to e-voting are given in this Notice. The Company will also send a separate communication relating to remote e-
voting which, inter alia, would contain details about User ID and password along with a copy of this Notice.

(d) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND
AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person
can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (60) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder. The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of the
companies, societies, etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/ authority, as applicable. A Proxy form is attached to this
Notice.

(e) Corporate membersintending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy
of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

(f)  Briefresume of Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed, nature of their expertise in specific functional areas, names of the
companies in which they hold directorships, memberships/chairmanships of Board Committees, shareholding and relationship
between directors inter-se as stipulated in Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and as per provisions mentioned in clause 1(1.2.5) of the Secretarial Standard - 2 on ‘General Meetings issued by the Council of
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government, for person seeking re-
appointment/appointment as director, are annexed to this Notice and in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the
Annual Report.

(@ Membersand proxy holders are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copies of the Annual Report o the Meeting.

(h) Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID Numbers and those who hold shares
in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting.

0} In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

® Relevant documentsreferred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Company on allworking days, except Saturdays, between 11.00a.m. and 1.00 p.m., up to the date of the Meeting.

(k)  Dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the meeting willbe credited / dispatched on or after 21st September, 2021 to those members
whose names appear on the Company’s Register of Members as on 14th September, 2021 (Record Date). Inrespect of shares held in
electronic mode, the dividend will be paid fo members whose names are furnished by the National Security Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as the beneficial owners on 14th September, 2021,

Payment of dividend shall be made through electronic mode to the Shareholders who have updated their bank account details.
Dividend warrants / demand drafts will be dispatched to the registered address of the shareholders who have not updated their bank
account details, after normalization of the postal service.

Pursuant to the amendments infroduced by the Finance Act, 2020 the Company will be required to withhold taxes at the prescribed
rates on the dividend paid to its shareholders w.e.f. 1st April 2020. No tax will be deducted on payment of dividend to the resident
individual shareholders if the total dividend paid does not exceed ¥ 5,000/- The withholding tax rate would vary depending on the
residential status of the shareholder and documents registered with the Company.
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Resident Shareholders:

Tax Deductible at Source for Resident Shareholders

Sr.No Particulars Withholding tax rate Documents required (if any)
(a) Valid PAN updated in the Company’s 10% No document required
Register of Members (if no exemption is sought)
b) No PAN/Valid PAN not updated in
the Company’s Register of Members 20% No document required

(if no exemption is sought)

©) Availability of lower/nil tax deduction
certificate issued by Income Tax
Department u/s 197 of
Income Tax Act, 1961

Rate specified
in the certificate

Lower tax deduction certificate
obtained from Income
Tax Authority

No Tax Deductible at Source on dividend payment to resident shareholders if the Shareholders submit the documents as mentionedin
the below table with the Company or the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd. on or before 14th

September, 2021.

Sr. No Particulars Withholding tax rate Documents required (if any)

0) Submission of form 15G/15H Nil Declaration in Form No. 15G (applicable to any
person other than a company or a firm) / Form
15H (applicable to an Individual who is
60 years and above), fulfiling certain
conditions.

(D) Shareholders to whom section 194 Nil Documentary evidence that the said provisions

of the Income Tax, 1961 does not are not applicable.
apply such as LIC, GIC, etc
i) Shareholder covered u/s 196 of Income  Nil Documentary evidence for coverage u/s 196 of

Tax Act, 1961 such as Government, RBI,
corporations established by Central Act
& mutual funds.

Income Tax Act, 1961

Non-Resident Shareholders:

Withholding tax on dividend payment to non-resident shareholders if the non-resident shareholders submit the documents as
mentioned in the below table with the Company or the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd. on

or before 14th September, 2021.

Sr. No. Particulars

Withholding tax rate

Documents required (if any)

0] Foreign Institutional Investors (Flls) /
Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs), if any.

(D) Other Non-resident shareholders

iy Availability of Lower/NIL tax deduction
certificate issued by Income Tax
Department u/s 197 of Income
Tax Act, 1961

20% (plus applicable
surcharge and cess)

20% (plus applicable
surcharge and cess)
or tax treaty rate
whichever is beneficial

Rate specified in
certificate

FPI registration number / certificate
To avail beneficial rate of tax treaty following
tax documents would be required:

1. Tax Residency certificate issued by revenue
authority of country of residence of
shareholder for the year in which dividend

is received.

PAN

Form 10F filled & duly signed
Self-declaration for non- existence of
permanent establishment/ fixed base in India
(Note: Application of beneficial Tax Treaty
Rate shall depend upon the completeness of
the documents submitted by the Non-
Resident shareholder and review to the
satisfaction of the Company)

o

Lower tax deduction certificate
obtained from Income Tax Authority
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e Format for the above mentioned Forms/documents are available for download on the website of the company -
www.narmadagelatines.com.

e The Company will issue soft copy of the TDS certificate to its shareholders through email registered with the Company or the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd. post payment of the dividend. Shareholders will be
able to download the TDS certificate from the Income Tax Department’s website https://incometaxindiaefiling.gov.in (refer to
Form 26AS).

o Application of TDS rate is subject to necessary verification by the Company of the shareholder details as available in Register of
Members as on the Record Date, and other documents available with the Company / Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB
Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

e« IncaseTDSis deducted at a higher rate, an option is still available with the shareholder to file the return of income and claim an
appropriate refund.

. In the event of any income tax demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arising fromm any misrepresentation, inaccuracy or
omission of information provided by the Member/s, such Member/s will be responsible to indemnify the Company and also,
provide the Company with allinformation / documents and co-operation in any appellate proceedings.

o ThisCommunication is not exhaustive and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences
inthe matter of dividend payment. Shareholders should consult their tax advisors for requisite action to be taken by them.

Members are requested to notify immediately:

o« totheir Depository Participants (DP) in respect to their Electronic Share Account; and

. to the Company at its Registered Office or to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company in respect of their physical
share holdings by submitting (i) scanned copy of the signed request letter which shall contain shareholder’s name, folio number,
bank details (Bank account number, Bank and Branch Name and address, IFSC, MICR details), (ii) self-attested copy of the PAN
card and (i) cancelled cheque leaf.

any change of address and also particulars of their Bank Accounts viz. Name of Bank, Branch, complete address of the Bank and
Account Number for printing the same on the Dividend Warrants o avoid fraudulent encashment.
Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered against their respective depository
accounts will be used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are
to be advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of either
registering bank particulars or changing bank particulars already registered against their respective folios for payment of dividend
are requested to write to the Company.

Any Member desirous of obtaining any information on the Accounts of the Company may forward such queries in writing to the

Company Secretary at the Registered Office, atleast ten days prior to the date of the Meeting.

Members having multiple ledger folio in identical name or joint names in identical order, are requested o intimate to the Company or

its Registrars such ledger folio(s) for consolidating such multiple holdings into asingle account.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A(5) and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 (Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013), the

Company has fransferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends for the financial years ended 31st March, 2013, from time to time, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 205C of the Act. In accordance with the provisions of

Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the

companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on

25th September, 2020 (date of last Annual General Meeting) on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Members who
have not encashed their dividend warrants are advised to write to the Company immediately claiming dividends declared by the

Company.

Adhering to the various requirements set out in the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and

Refund) Rules, 2016 (Rules), as amended from time to time, the Company has, during financial year 2020-21, transferred to the IEPF

Authority all equity shares of the Company in respect of which dividends for seven consecutive years or more remaining unpaid or

unclaimed as on the due date of transfer. Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed dividend transferred to IEPF Authority

can be claimed back from them. Concerned members / Investors are advised tfo visit the weblink:
http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html for lodging claim for refund of shares and / or dividends from the IEPF authority.

Interms of the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures)

Rules, 2014, a Member may nominate, at any time, in the prescribed mannerin Form No. SH. 13, a person to whom his/her sharesin the

Company shall vest in the event of his/her death. This may be sent to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office, duly

completed.

Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number ("PAN") by every

participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit

their PAN details fo the Company or fo the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

To prevent fraudulent tfransactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in

address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for

long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.
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Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agentsimmediately of:

a. changeintheresidential status onreturn to India for permanent settflement; and

b. particulars of their Bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, account no. and address of
the bank, if not furnished earlier.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report and Notice of the 60th Annual General Meeting of the Company, inter alia, indicating the

process and manner of e-voting along with Atftendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are

registered with the Company/Depository Participants for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard

copy of the same. Formembers who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 60th Annual General

Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being

sentinthe permitted mode.

Dispatch of Annual Report through electronic mode: In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 11, 2020,
Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 60th Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for the financial year ended
March 31,2021 will be available on the Company’s website www.narmadagelatines.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE
Limited at www.bseindia.com.

Members are also requested to inform their correct e-mail address, if any, to the Depositories (if shares held in demat form) and to the
Registrars and share fransfer agents by visiting their website namely "www.cbsl.com/green.php" (if shares held in physical form) in
compliance of Green Initiative as per circular No. 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs to facilitate the company to send notice/documents through e-mail.

Members who do not have access to e-voting facility may write to the Company of their intention to exercise their assent or dissent on
shareholders’ resolution by way of postal ballot. The company shall provide postal ballot facility to such members.

Voting through electronic and other means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide to its members the facility to exercise their right to vote on

resolutions proposed to be passed in the AGM by electronic means. The members may cast their votes using an electronic voting

system from a place otherthan the venue of the AGM (‘remote e-voting’).

¢ The facility for voting through ballot or polling paper shall be made available at the Meeting and the members attending the
Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to vote at the Meeting through ballot or polling paper.

. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again.

. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL) to provide the e-voting facility.

. The voting rights of shareholders shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of equity shares registered in the name of the member
beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off datei.e. 14th September, 2021.

¢ A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e. 14th September, 2021 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting /ballot
poll.

e« The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Dr Asim Kumar Chattopadhyay, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI
Membership No. FCS 2303), "AMATRI ASHIS" 10, Kumar Para Lane, Ganges Side, Alambazar, Kolkata-700035, as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the remote e- voting and Mr. Tapan Badkul, Cost and Management Accountant, Jabalpur as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting process at the AGM in a fair and fransparent manner and they have communicated their willingness to be
appointed and will be available for same purpose.

. The Scrutinizer, after scrutinizing the votes cast at the meeting and through remote e-voting, will, not later than three days of
conclusion of the Meeting. make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report and submit the same to the Chairman. The results declared
alongwith the consolidated Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company www.narmadagelatines.com
and on the website of CDSL, and the results shall simultaneously be communicated to the BSE Limited.

e TheScrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock the
votesin the presence of atf least two (2) withesses not in the employment of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the
votes castin favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company.

. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting. i.e.
September21,2021.

Members are requested to read the instructions below carefully before exercising their vote through remote e-voting.

These details and instructions form an integral part of Notice for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 21st September, 2021.

Steps for E-voting
The instructions for members forremote e-voting are asunder:

(0]

The remote e-voting period begins on 18th September, 2021 at 9:00 am and ends on 20th September, 2021 at 5:00 pm. During this
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 14th
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September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior o the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.

(i)  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-
voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholdersis at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility o listed entities in India. This necessitates
registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant o a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to
all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

@iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accountsin orderto access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding
securitiesin Demat mode CDSL/NSDL s given below:
Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password.

Shareholders Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for

holding securities users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit

in Demat mode www.cdslindia.com and click on Loginicon and select New System Myeasi.

with CDSL 2) Aftersuccessful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies

where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally,
there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers” website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN
No. from a e-Voting link availoble on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication,
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual () Ifyouare already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web

Shareholders browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a

holding securities mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under

in demat mode “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User
with NSDL ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on

“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

(i) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp.

(i) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click
on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.
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Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
(holding securities in registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
demat mode) login option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
through their successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
Depository service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
Participants vote during the remote e-Voting period orjoining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.
CDSLand NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in Demat mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in Demat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or

call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

(%]

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in
Demat form.
1) Theshareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Clickon “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enteryourUserID
a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding sharesin Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4) Nextenterthe Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any
company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) Ifyou are afirst-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders).

- Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested
to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or
Bank Details inthe company recordsin order to login.

R Daft
oOf BirTCr]w © - If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio

(DOB) numberin the Dividend Bank details field.

(D]
(vii)

(vii)
(@ix)
)

(xi)
[CD)

(xiii)
(xiv)

After entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the EVSN selection screen. However, members holding shares in
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new
password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company
onwhich they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding sharesin physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
Click onthe relevant EVSN on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option “"YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or
NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click onthe “Resolutions File Link” if you wish to view the entire Resolutions.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirmyourvote, click on “OK", else to change your vote, click on *CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
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(xv) If Demataccount holder has forgotten the changed password, then enter the User ID and Captcha Code click on Forgot Password &
enterthe details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-Voting app can
be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the
Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

(xvii) Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to www.
evotingindia.com andregister themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts
they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploadedin PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

PROCESS FORTHOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1.

2.
3.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self aftested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self aftested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) by emailto Company/RTA emailid.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your emailid & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)
which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

(xviii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting
manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Narmada Gelatines Limited

Mahesh Verma
Head -Finance & Secretarial

Date: 29th June, 2021
Place : Jabalpur

Registered Office:
CARAVS, Room No. 28
15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur—482 001
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Annexure

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the 60th Annual General Meeting
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on

General Meetings)

Particulars

Name Mr. Ravindra K. Raje Mr. Ashok K. Kapur Mr. Prakash M. Nene Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy
DIN 00112003 00126807 00164133 02797916

Date of Birth 30.06.1955 04.11.1947 30.07.1954 26.12.1950

Date of Appointment /

Re-appointment in AGM 25.09.2019 25.09.2019 NA NA

Qualification

Fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
He is also a qualified
Company Secretary and
a Bachelor of Law.

Mechanical Engineer

B.E. (Hons.) Electronics,
MBA from B.I.T.S. Pilani.

Member of the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India
Bachelor Degree in

(with Honours) from Calcutta
University and a Degree in Law
(LLB) from Utkal University,
Bhubaneswar, Odisha.
Intermediate Examination of
the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India, Kolkata

Expertise in specific
functional areas and
past experience

45 years of experience in
industry and consultancy
assignments.

50 years of experience

in Gelatin industry and
Ex-Chairman of Ossein

& Gelatine Manufactures’
Association of India and
Director of Gelatine
Manufacturers Association
of Asia Pacific and
Ex-Chairman Ossein and
Gelatine Penal CAPEXIL.

44 years experience in
various areas such as

financial services industry,

Business Planning,
Venture Capital,

Asset Management,
Capital Markets, and
Mergers & Acquisitions.
Currently, he is acting as
an advisor to large Fund
houses and Corporates
on all matters of Fund

Expertise in the field of
restructuring such as mergers /
acquisitions, resource
mobilization through public
issue/rights issue, QIP/ FCCB/
GDR and Corporate
Governance.

Management, M & A, and
Corporate Strategy etfc.

He is presently a designated
partner of Earth Advisors LLP
and partner of Megadelta

Capital Advisors LLP.

Directorship in other

Aasman Management

Aasman Management Nil

GWL Properties Limited

companies Services Pvt. Ltd. Services Pvt. Ltd. MPIL Corporation Limited.
Dandvati Investments & Dandvati Investments &
Trading Co Pvt. Ltd. Trading Co Pvt. Ltd.
GWL Properties Ltd. Firestorm Electronics
Harshit Finlease & Corporation Pvt. Ltd.,
Investments Pvt. Ltd. GWL Properties Ltd.
Jumbo World Holdings Jumbo World Holdings
(India) Pvt. Ltd. (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Jumbo Electronics Jumbo Electronics
Corporation Pvt, Ltd. Corporation Pvt, Ltd.
L’Aquila Investments Co. Primo Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Pvt. Ltd. Viman Investments Pvt. Ltd.
Primo Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
SMN Engineers Ltd.
Viman Investments Pvt. Ltd.
Wizer Advertising Pvt. Ltd.
Memberships / GWL Properties Ltd. Narmada Gelatines Ltd Nil Nil
Chairmanships of * Stakeholders’ e Stakeholder’s
committees across Relationship Committee Relationship Committee
Public companies - Member - Member
Narmada Gelatines Ltd
Stakeholder’s Relationship
Committee
- Member
Shareholding 750 equity shares 1050 equity shares Nil Nil
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CIN: L24111MP1961PLC016023
Registered office : 28, CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482001, M.P.
Website : www.narmadagelatines.com, Email : nglijpp@rediffmail.com
Tel : Phone : (0761) 2830433

ATTENDANCE SLIP
60" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 21° September, 2021

DPID Folio No.
Client ID No. of Shares

| certify that | am a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered Shareholder* of the Company.
*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

| hereby record my presence at the 60th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Tuesday, 21st September,
2021 at 11:30 a.m. at Hotel Narmada Jacksons, South Civil Lines, Jabalpur-M.P.

Member’s/Proxy’s Name in BLOCK Letters Member’s / Proxy’s Signature

Note : Please fill in this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Enfrance of the Hall.

Route Map of AGM Venue
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)@\ NARMADA GELATINES LIMITED
\f CIN: L24111MP1961PLC016023
Registered office : 28, CARAVS, 15 Civil Lines, Jabalpur - 482001, M.P.

Website : www.narmadagelatines.com, Email : nglipp@rediffmail.com
Tel : Phone : (0761) 2830433

FORM No. MGT 11 - PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

60th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - 21st September, 2021

Name of Member(s) DP ID* :
Registered Address Client ID* :
E-mail ID Folio No. :

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form

| / We, being the member(s) of shares of Narmada Gelatines Limited, hereby appoint:

1. of E-mailld: or failing him
2. of E-mailld: orfailing him
D3, of E-mailld:

' and whose signatures are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 60"
: Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday the 21° day of September, 2021 at 11:30 a.m. at Hotel Narmada
- Jacksons, South Civil Lines, Jabalpur, M.P. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below (see

noteivbelow):
Resolution Resolutions Vote
No.
For Against Abstain
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements, Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors
Declaration of dividend on equity shares
Re-appointment of Mr. Ravindra K Raje (DIN: 00112003) as a Director liable
to retire by rotation
SPECIAL BUSINESS
4 Re-appointment of Mr. Ashok K. Kapur (DIN: 00126807) as the Whole-time
: Director
: 5 Appointment of Mr. Prakash M. Nene (DIN: 00164133) as an Independent
cX) Director
6 Appointment of Mr. K. Krishnamoorthy (DIN: 02797916) as an Independent
Director
: Signed this day of 2021 .
: 1
Revenue
stamp
Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder  Signature of third proxy holder Signature of Shareholder

- Note:
S

Vi

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

AProxy need notbe amember of the Company.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting
rights may appoint asingle person as proxy and such person shallnot act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.
This is optional. Please put a ‘3" in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’
column blank against any or allthe resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote inthe manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in personif he / she so wishes.
In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but name of all the joint holders should be stated.
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